Oracle® Retail Service Backbone

Implementation Guide Release 16.0.030 E99920-01

June 2019



Oracle® Retail Service Backbone Implementation Guide, Release 16.0.030

E99920-01

Copyright © 2019, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

Primary Author: Sanal Parameswaran

Contributing Author: Nathan Young

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this is software or related documentation that is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Xeon are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Opteron, the AMD logo, and the AMD Opteron logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

Value-Added Reseller (VAR) Language

Oracle Retail VAR Applications

The following restrictions and provisions only apply to the programs referred to in this section and licensed to you. You acknowledge that the programs may contain third party software (VAR applications) licensed to Oracle. Depending upon your product and its version number, the VAR applications may include:

(i) the **MicroStrategy** Components developed and licensed by MicroStrategy Services Corporation (MicroStrategy) of McLean, Virginia to Oracle and imbedded in the MicroStrategy for Oracle Retail Data Warehouse and MicroStrategy for Oracle Retail Planning & Optimization applications.

(ii) the **Wavelink** component developed and licensed by Wavelink Corporation (Wavelink) of Kirkland, Washington, to Oracle and imbedded in Oracle Retail Mobile Store Inventory Management.

(iii) the software component known as Access Via[™] licensed by Access Via of Seattle, Washington, and imbedded in Oracle Retail Signs and Oracle Retail Labels and Tags.

(iv) the software component known as **Adobe Flex™** licensed by Adobe Systems Incorporated of San Jose, California, and imbedded in Oracle Retail Promotion Planning & Optimization application.

You acknowledge and confirm that Oracle grants you use of only the object code of the VAR Applications. Oracle will not deliver source code to the VAR Applications to you. Notwithstanding any other term or condition of the agreement and this ordering document, you shall not cause or permit alteration of any VAR Applications. For purposes of this section, "alteration" refers to all alterations, translations, upgrades, enhancements, customizations or modifications of all or any portion of the VAR Applications including all reconfigurations, reassembly or reverse assembly, re-engineering or reverse engineering and recompilations or reverse compilations of the VAR Applications or any derivatives of the VAR Applications. You acknowledge that it shall be a breach of the agreement to utilize the relationship, and/or confidential information of the VAR Applications for purposes of competitive discovery.

The VAR Applications contain trade secrets of Oracle and Oracle's licensors and Customer shall not attempt, cause, or permit the alteration, decompilation, reverse engineering, disassembly or other reduction of the VAR Applications to a human perceivable form. Oracle reserves the right to replace, with functional equivalent software, any of the VAR Applications in future releases of the applicable program.

Contents

Se	end Us Your Comments	xi
Pr	eface	xiii
	Audience	xiii
	Documentation Accessibility	xiii
	Customer Support	xiii
	Review Patch Documentation	xiv
	Improved Process for Oracle Retail Documentation Corrections	xiv
	Oracle Retail Documentation on the Oracle Technology Network	xiv
	Conventions	xiv
1	Introduction	
	Oracle Retail Enterprise Integration Styles	1-1
	Request/Response Integration Style	1-1
	OSB and RSB	1-3
2	OSB Overview	
3	OSB Core Concepts	
	Proxy Service	3-1
	Business Service	3-1
	Alerts	3-1
	OSB and RSB High Level Architecture	3-3
4	RSB Concepts	
	Decorators	4-1
	Payload	4-1
	Router/Injector Service	4-2
	Edge App	4-2
	Message Family	4-2

Instrumentation4-3Security Policy Configurations4-3

5 RSB Service Lifecycle

6 RSB Components

RSB Kernel - Infrastructure	6-1
RSB Functional Components	6-1
RSB Service Infrastructure Database	6-2

7 RSB Home

Directory Structure and Key Files	7-1
Deployment Property File	7-2
check-version-and-unpack.sh	7-3
rsb-compiler.sh	7-3
rsb-deployer.sh	7-3
-deploy-rsb-service <decorator file="" jar=""></decorator>	7-3
-deploy-all-rsb-service	7-3
-deploy-all-rsb-service-for-app <appname></appname>	7-3
-prepare-wls	7-3
-undeploy-rsb-service <decorator jar="" name=""></decorator>	7-4
-undeploy-all-rsb-service	7-4
-undeploy-all-rsb-service-for-app <appname></appname>	7-4
download-app-service-wsdl.sh	7-4
generate-rsb-decorator-security-config.sh	7-4
setup-message-protection-security-credentials.sh	7-4
configure-rsb-app-server-for-security-policy-b.sh	7-5

8 RSB Paks

App Service Decorator	8-1
Business Process Service Decorator	8-1
Functional Business Process	8-1
Functional Service Integration Flow	8-1

9 RSB and RIB

10 RSB and JMX

Metrics Data	10-1
Business and SLA Alerts	10-2
Alert Purging	10-2

11 RSB Tools

SIT Tools	11-1
JSIT	11-1
Download and Prepare JSIT	11-2
Deploy JSIT to WebLogic 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)	11-2
PSIT	11-3
Installation and Setup	11-3

Menu Options	11-3
Database Credentials Setup	11-3
PLSQL SIT Schema Setup	11-4
Configure Service(s)	11-4
Update EAR with Database Details	11-4
Testing PSIT	11-4
Deploying the plsql-service-interface-tester-app-16.0.030.ear	11-4
RIC	11-5

12 Instrumentation in RSB

Decorator Service Instrumentation in RSB	12-1
RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY Table: Table Structure Definition	12-1
Broadcasting Logs	12-2

13 Pre-Implementation Considerations

Life-cycle Management	13-1
High Availability Considerations	13-2
WebLogic Server Cluster Concepts	13-3
Oracle Database Cluster (RAC) Concepts	13-4
Recommended Deployment Options	13-4
Cluster Deployment	13-4
HTTPS Cluster Configurations	13-5
Who Should Use This Configuration?	13-6

14 Implementation Process

Verification and Validation	14-2
Implementation Environment Verification	14-2

15 RSB in Operation

Operational Considerations	15-1
Log File Archive and Purge	15-1
Message Flow in a Decorator Proxy Service	15-1
Error Handling in Decorator Services	15-1
Service and Business Alerts	15-2
Adding New Alerts	15-2
Performance Monitoring	15-5
OSB Console	15-6
Service Activity Table Growth and Purge	15-6
Support Staff Requirements	15-7

16 Administration and Logging

RSB Deployment Properties	16-1
JAVA_HOME	16-1
rsb-deployment-env-info.service-provider-app-in-scope-for-integration	16-1
rsb-deployment-env-info.service-requester-app-in-scope-for-integration	16-1

rsb-osb-container.domain-name	16-1
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.home</domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.cluster-name</domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.<cluster name="">.http-url</cluster></domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.<cluster name="">.https-url</cluster></domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container <domain name="">.admin-server-http-url</domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.admin-server-connection-url</domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.<cluster name="">.managed-servers</cluster></domain>	16-2
rsb-osb-container. <domain name="">.<cluster name="">.<managed< td=""><td></td></managed<></cluster></domain>	
Server>.managed-server-connection-url 16-3	
service-infrastructure-db.jdbc-url	16-3
edge-app-container. <app>.connection-url</app>	16-3
global.app-service-end-point-url-pattern=http:// <http_hostname>:<http_ PORT>/<service_name>Bean/<service_name>Service 16-3</service_name></service_name></http_ </http_hostname>	
<app>.app-service-end-point-url-pattern=http://<http_hostname>:<http_ PORT>/<service_name>Bean/<service_name>Service 16-3</service_name></service_name></http_ </http_hostname></app>	
<decorator>.app-service-end-point-url=<service url=""></service></decorator>	16-4
Enabling and Disabling Instrumentation	16-4
Changing Passwords	16-5
Trace and Audit Logs	16-5
Broadcasting Logs	16-5
Log File Archive and Purge	16-6

17 Security

Web Service Security Policies	17-1
-------------------------------	------

18 Testing the Retail Service Backbone

SIT	18-1
SB Console	18-1
Policy B Testing	18-2
Third-party tools (SoapUI)	18-3
RIC	18-4

19 Performance

Performance Factors	19-1
Cluster Deployment	19-1
Enabling/Disabling Instrumentation	19-2
Purging	19-2
RSB Service Activity Table	19-2
How to Calculate Schema Size?	19-2
WebLogic Data Retirement Policy	19-3

20 Troubleshooting

21 External Systems Integration

	RSB Architecture	21-1
Α	List of RSB Decorator Paks	
в	Service Integration Flows	
С	RSB Security Configuration Sample Script	
D	RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY Table	
	Create Table	D-1
	Indexes	D-1
	Constraints	D-2
	Purging / Maintenance	D-2

References

Send Us Your Comments

Oracle® Retail Service Backbone Implementation Guide, Release 16.0.030.

Oracle welcomes customers' comments and suggestions on the quality and usefulness of this document.

Your feedback is important, and helps us to best meet your needs as a user of our products. For example:

- Are the implementation steps correct and complete?
- Did you understand the context of the procedures?
- Did you find any errors in the information?
- Does the structure of the information help you with your tasks?
- Do you need different information or graphics? If so, where, and in what format?
- Are the examples correct? Do you need more examples?

If you find any errors or have any other suggestions for improvement, then please tell us your name, the name of the company who has licensed our products, the title and part number of the documentation and the chapter, section, and page number (if available).

Note: Before sending us your comments, you might like to check that you have the latest version of the document and if any concerns are already addressed. To do this, access the Online Documentation available on the Oracle Technology Network Web site. It contains the most current Documentation Library plus all documents revised or released recently.

Send your comments to us using the electronic mail address: retail-doc_us@oracle.com

Please give your name, address, electronic mail address, and telephone number (optional).

If you need assistance with Oracle software, then please contact your support representative or Oracle Support Services.

If you require training or instruction in using Oracle software, then please contact your Oracle local office and inquire about our Oracle University offerings. A list of Oracle offices is available on our Web site at http://www.oracle.com.

Preface

This Implementation Guide provides a high-level overview of how the different components of Retail Service Backbone product integrate with each other.

Audience

This guide is for:

- Systems administration and operations personnel
- Systems analysts
- Integrators and implementers
- Business analysts who need information about Product processes and interfaces

Documentation Accessibility

For information about Oracle's commitment to accessibility, visit the Oracle Accessibility Program website at http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=docacc.

Access to Oracle Support

Oracle customers that have purchased support have access to electronic support through My Oracle Support. For information, visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=info or visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=trs if you are hearing impaired.

Customer Support

To contact Oracle Customer Support, access My Oracle Support at the following URL:

https://support.oracle.com

When contacting Customer Support, please provide the following:

- Product version and program/module name
- Functional and technical description of the problem (include business impact)
- Detailed step-by-step instructions to re-create
- Exact error message received
- Screen shots of each step you take

Review Patch Documentation

When you install the application for the first time, you install either a base release (for example, 16.0) or a later patch release (for example, 16.0.030). If you are installing the base release and additional patch releases, read the documentation for all releases that have occurred since the base release before you begin installation. Documentation for patch releases can contain critical information related to the base release, as well as information about code changes since the base release.

Improved Process for Oracle Retail Documentation Corrections

To more quickly address critical corrections to Oracle Retail documentation content, Oracle Retail documentation may be republished whenever a critical correction is needed. For critical corrections, the republication of an Oracle Retail document may at times not be attached to a numbered software release; instead, the Oracle Retail document will simply be replaced on the Oracle Technology Network Web site, or, in the case of Data Models, to the applicable My Oracle Support Documentation container where they reside.

This process will prevent delays in making critical corrections available to customers. For the customer, it means that before you begin installation, you must verify that you have the most recent version of the Oracle Retail documentation set. Oracle Retail documentation is available on the Oracle Technology Network at the following URL:

http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/documentation/oracle-retail-100266.ht
ml

An updated version of the applicable Oracle Retail document is indicated by Oracle part number, as well as print date (month and year). An updated version uses the same part number, with a higher-numbered suffix. For example, part number E123456-02 is an updated version of a document with part number E123456-01.

If a more recent version of a document is available, that version supersedes all previous versions.

Oracle Retail Documentation on the Oracle Technology Network

Oracle Retail product documentation is available on the following Web site:

http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/documentation/oracle-retail-100266.ht
ml

(Data Model documents are not available through Oracle Technology Network. You can obtain them through My Oracle Support.)

Conventions

ConventionMeaningboldfaceBoldface type indicates graphical user interface elements associated
with an action, or terms defined in text or the glossary.italicItalic type indicates book titles, emphasis, or placeholder variables for
which you supply particular values.monospaceMonospace type indicates commands within a paragraph, URLs, code
in examples, text that appears on the screen, or text that you enter.

The following text conventions are used in this document:

Introduction

This chapter introduces the various implementation strategies.

Oracle Retail Enterprise Integration Styles

There is no one integration approach that addresses all criteria equally well. Therefore, multiple approaches for integrating applications have evolved over time. Oracle Retail has focused on three main integration styles:

- Asynchronous JMS Pub/Sub Fire-and-Forget
- Request/Response
- Bulk Data



Request/Response Integration Style

The approach taken by Oracle Retail is not to choose one style to use every time but to choose the best style for a particular integration opportunity. Each style has its

advantages and disadvantages. Applications or solutions may integrate using multiple styles so that each point of integration takes advantage of the style that suits it best.

With Retail Service Backbone (RSB), Oracle Retail has added the Request/Response Style of Enterprise Integration to the Retail Integration Suite of products. The Retail Service Backbone (RSB) is the product that defines the Oracle Retail Enterprise SOA Architecture and provides the infrastructure for the Services domain.

The Oracle Service Bus (OSB) platform is the integration infrastructure product at the core of the Oracle Retail Service Backbone (RSB) set of products.

RSB products include pre-build Services and Flows and the integration API end points for all of the Oracle Retail Application's web services and the Enterprise Solution web service integration points and contracts for external application to connect to as part of the Solution business processing.



To productize Oracle Retail web services for delivery to customers, the Oracle Retail Service Backbone (RSB) also delivers as product a set of security enablement tools and the tooling required to automate the creation and packaging of the configurations for OSB and to manage the full life cycle of web services (Compile, Deploy, Patch, Monitor).

RSB enables the loose coupling between Oracle Retail and external applications and applications within Oracle Retail Suite.

- RSB provides automated OSB configurations for web service deployment and security configurations
- RSB packages all of the Oracle Retail Web Services
- RSB provides tooling for the full life cycle management of OSB hosted Web Services (Development, Compilation, Deployment and Upgrades) and automatically adds instrumentation for runtime operations monitoring (using Retail Integration Console application)



RSB features centralized software product lifecycle management. All configuration and management is from a single centralized location using specific tools to support all phases of the Software Product Lifecycle.



The framework and the tools for the common deployment model and the software life cycle management are located in rsb-home.

This provides an architecture and infrastructure for enterprise services, integration flows, transformations and BPEL-based components for RGBU enterprise integration solutions. Any enterprise level integration logic (complex integration flows, adapting/connector applications) can be installed, patched and upgraded from this centralized configuration location.

Note: See the Life Cycle of this document.

OSB and **RSB**

There are many reasons for choosing OSB as the infrastructure component for RSB.

 Oracle Service Bus is a core Oracle SOA Suite product within the Fusion Technology stack.



- OSB connects, mediates, and manages interactions between heterogeneous services, legacy applications, packaged applications, and multiple enterprise service bus instances.
- It delivers standards-based service integration for high-volume, mission-critical environments spanning the enterprise and the cloud.
- Customers are using Enterprise Service Buses (ESBs) as the integration platform of choice for integrations between Oracle Retail and their legacy and third party systems.
- Services are truly loosely coupled. Applications need not worry about integration logic, since it is completely separate and delegated to OSB.
- OSB provides built-in management and monitoring capabilities and supports out-of-the-box integration with SOA governance products.
- The OSB is specifically designed for the task of provisioning, integrating, and managing services in an SOA.
- SOA architectural style is the primary architecture pattern/strategy for Oracle going forward. Oracle Service Bus is central to Oracle's Fusion Architecture. OSB is the fundamental service infrastructure for Enterprise level SOA solution.

OSB Overview

Oracle Service Bus is a proven market-leading Enterprise Service Bus (ESB) built from the ground up for SOA life cycle management that provides foundation capabilities for service discovery and intermediation, rapid service provisioning and deployment, and governance. This service-infrastructure software adheres to the SOA principles of building coarse-grained, loosely coupled, and standards-based services. Additionally, OSB acts as a message brokering, service monitoring, administration, dynamic routing, and message transformation layer to infrastructure.

Oracle Service Bus relies on Oracle WebLogic Server run-time facilities. Oracle WebLogic Server provides the core services that ensure reliability, high availability, scalability, and a high-performing execution environment for your application.

Based on Oracle Platform Security Services and Oracle WebLogic security framework, Oracle Service Bus ensures service security at all levels. A comprehensive set of components for built-in security gives customers significant flexibility and choice. Users can also plug in custom or third-party security components. Built-in capabilities allow flexibility in implementation by enabling security at all levels. For authoring and managing security policies Enterprise Manager for Fusion Middleware Control (EM) is an optional product from Oracle.

Oracle Service Bus is a configuration-based, policy-driven ESB. It provides reliable service-oriented integration, service management, and traditional message brokering across heterogeneous IT environments.

OSB Core Concepts

OSB is the layer sandwiched between RSB and WebLogic. OSB provides its capabilities using many components including the important ones described in this chapter.

Proxy Service

Proxy services are Oracle Service Bus definitions of intermediary Web services that Oracle Service Bus implements locally on Oracle WebLogic Server. The service consumers connect to the proxy service. For the service consumer, the proxy service provides the same interface as the application service. The only difference from a service consumer perspective is the endpoint URL. If an existing service is OSB enabled, the only programming change in the service consumer side is the change of existing URL to the proxy service URL. As the name suggests, the proxy service is a "proxy" of the actual web service.

Business Service

Business services are Oracle Service Bus definitions of the enterprise information services with which you want to exchange messages. Business services are coupled with the actual web service providers. Typically service consumers invoke proxy services. Proxy services invoke business services, which in turn invoke the service providers. This level of indirection helps to decouple the service providers and service consumers. It also helps to introduce any mediation, routing, transformation and instrumentation of the service calls.

Alerts

Alerts are generated by OSB monitoring framework. Alerts help to isolate and diagnose problems when they occur. These are captured and configured to be reported.



The Collector collects the updated statistics from Oracle Service Bus runtime and sends it to Aggregator. The Aggregator aggregates the statistics over the aggregation interval. The aggregated statistics are pushed to the Alert Manager. The Alert Manager triggers alerts based on these statistics. The aggregated statistics are also stored and can be retrieved by the Retriever.

Alerts can be viewed in OSB Console as well as (RIC).

OSB generates two types of alerts - SLA Alerts and Pipeline Alerts. SLA alerts are raised in Oracle Service Bus to indicate potential violation of the Service Level Agreements (SLAs). Pipeline alerts can be raised in the message flow of the proxy service. In RSB, the SLA alerts are called System Alerts and Pipeline Alerts are called Business Alert. The intention of this renaming is to keep the names non-technical.

As the name suggests, the system alerts are non-business alerts and business alerts are caused by the business data. An example of a System Alert is an alert triggered when a request takes more than a specified time to complete. An example of a business alert is an alert triggered when the order total is more than a million dollars. The users can create alert conditions catered to their business requirements.

RSB comes with a default alert for each of the decorators. The alert rule name is ErrorCountAlertRule and the alert condition is Aggregation Interval 0 Hour(s) and 10 Minutes and Error Count > 0. You can view this alert in the SLA Alert Rules tab for Proxy Service in the OSB Console.

RSB does not have any default business alerts. Business alerts (Pipeline alerts) are added in the message flow of the proxy service.

See the developers guide for more information on how to add a business alert to the decorator.

Note: See also Oracle® Fusion Middleware Concepts and Architecture for Oracle Service Bus 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0).



OSB and RSB High Level Architecture

RSB is built on the top of OSB components. In an architectural perspective RSB runtime can be viewed as a layer between OSB and edge applications. RSB adds instrumentation and security among other features to service invocations. Service consumers and providers communicate using RSB-OSB layer. OSB is an infrastructure product while RSB is a retail-specific integration implementation.

4

RSB Concepts

This chapter describes RSB concepts.

Decorators

For each service, RSB packages a proxy service, the corresponding business service and the instrumentation code as a single deployment unit. This combination of services and instrumentation is called a Decorator. It is based on the Decorator design pattern where value is added ("decorated', in other words) to the base functionality. RSB adds instrumentation code, security policies and binds the proxy service and business service together in the decorator. When a decorator is deployed both proxy service and business service are deployed along with instrumentation code. Following diagram is a sequence diagram showing the invocation call from service consumer to service provider.



Payload

A payload is the XML message that is send to and returned from web service operations. These XML messages conform to schema standards agreed upon by Oracle Retail and governed by RIB-RSB. These standards are published as XSDs and referred as Retail Business Objects (RBO)

Examples of payload types include ItemDesc, ASNInDesc, ASNOutDesc etc.

Router/Injector Service

The Router/Injector service is a mechanism for external web services to subscribe data published in RIB topics. In the absence of this method, the external applications will have to subscribe directly to JMS Topics and parse the message to call appropriate web services. This solution serves as an alternative to integrate external web service providers to RIB.



RIB4OMS is an example of a router/injector service included in this release. This routing service is available in the pak

RsbServiceIntegrationFlowPak16.0.030ForRibOmsToRsbOmsRouting_eng_ga.zip. The diagram above shows the different OMS services that routing service calls based on the message family.

Edge App

This is a term use to refer the actual service provider like RMS, SIM, external applications etc. RSB and OSB are intermediate layers between the service consumer and service provider.

Message Family

The RSB service payloads are designed around the concept of a message family. Each message belongs to a specific message family. Each message family contains information specific to a related set of operations on a business entity or related business entities. Examples are ASNIn, ASNOut, Items and so on.

A message family may contain multiple message types. Each message type encapsulates the information specific to a business entity within one or more business events. For example, the order message family is published for events such as Create PO Header, Create PO Detail, Update PO Header, or Delete PO Detail.

This classification helps to group related messages for reporting and analysis. Examples of message family include ASNIn, Customer, Items, ItemLoc etc.

Instrumentation

Instrumentation is a method of intercepting the main flow and collecting important information for reporting or analysis. In RSB, the instrumentation code collects application name, proxy and business service operation names, timestamp, payload etc during instrumentation. The collected information is stored into a database configured at installation time. The information is collected in the most efficient way so that the primary invocation flow is least affected in terms of performance.

The RSB instrumentation captures the timestamps of the request and response, the payload of the service call and response, the service URI, operation name, application name and the result of execution. The instrumentation call is made at the response pipeline, in other words after the service call returns from the service execution in the edge app server.

The information collected by instrumentation is reported through RIC.

Note: Review the *Oracle Retail Service Backbone Integration Console Guide* for more details.

Security Policy Configurations

Between service consumer, RSB and service provider there are many options to secure the communication using web service policies. Since there are multiple layers involved in the communication, the policies chosen for each layer must be compatible. RSB supports two such sets of policy configurations; policy A and policy B. RSB comes with supports for these two configurations with scripts to automate the configurations. We believe these configurations satisfy most of the common security requirements of the customers. Any requirements outside these configurations will have to be configured manually.

Policy A is SSL with UsernameToken. The transport layer of the service invocation uses https for this policy. The consumers will have to provide the username and password for invoking the service. Policy B is message protection with UsernameToken. Policy B should be called with http. The encryption is at the message level, instead of transport layer.

Note: Review the *Oracle Retail Service Backbone Security Guide* for more details.

RSB Service Lifecycle

Web Services in RSB have the following lifecycle stages.

- Design and Development
- Deployment and Configuration
- Service Runtime
- Insight Time

The web services and corresponding decorator services are developed using the development time tools like Artifact Generator (AG) and Retail SOA Enabler (RSE). The web services are hosted on the edge app servers. The decorators are deployed on the RSB Server using rsb-home tools. The decorators run on the OSB runtime. The health and other service related activities are monitored using the web tools like Retail Integration Console (RIC).

The diagram below shows the architecture of the RSB service lifecycle in detail.



RSB Components

RSB is an integration product that consists of a kernel and other independently deployable components. These components are:

- Decorators for Retails Applications
- Service Integration Flow component. These are OSB integration services that are not decorators.

RSB Kernel - Infrastructure

RSB Kernel contains the core infrastructure of RSB. It is distributed as an archive file. When extracted it builds the directory structure required for the lifecycle management of other components of RSB. The archive contains the directory structure, scripts for various lifecycle operations and libraries required for RSB.

RSB Kernel includes tools for generation of OSB projects with built-in instrumentation, tools for automating lifecycle management of services and tools for automatic enablement of certified web service security policies.

The kernel must be downloaded to a directory where you want to place the rsb-home directory structure. rsb-home serves as the central configuration management location for retail services. It also enforces standardization and verification of retail enterprise services.

On extraction of the kernel, the entire directory structure and other required scripts and jars are created as required. Since all of the lifecycle operations are based on a well defined directory structure, the location and permissions of the kernel structure is very important.

After the kernel is extracted, other components of RSB are manually downloaded and copied to the location reserved for them. Again, it is important that these components are copied to the correct location.

RSB Functional Components

RSB Functional paks are distribution units for retail applications in the scope of integration. There are different types of functional components addressing various domains.

- App Service Decorator
- Business Process Service Decorator
- Functional Business Process
- Functional Service Integration Flow

RSB Service Infrastructure Database

OSB and OWSM (Oracle Web Service Manager) policies require runtime database schema for its functioning. These database schemas are required to be created with Repository Creation Utility (RCU). This application is available in oracle download site

(http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/middleware/data-integrator/downloads/ind ex.html). It is important that the schemas are created with this tool. Manual creation of the required database components are error prone. It is also important that the RCU version must be the one mentioned in the installation documents. If you are creating schema in a different version of RCU, the OSB system may not work properly.

While creating the schema, you should choose a prefix (The recommended prefix is RSB) and select two schemas as highlighted in the diagram below. The tool will select any other dependent schemas. Please do not deselect these.

,	Select	Components - Step 3 of 7	001
elect Components			
	Specify a unique prefix for all so	chemist created in this session, so you can ea	usily locate, reference, and manage the schemas later
A Well parts	O Select existing prefix:	ADF	*
Contrast requiring	C. Contractor		
Databale Connection Datable	C. Prene new brens	PGB	
Select Components		Alpha numeric onty: Cannot start with a	number, No special characters.
Schema Passwords	Component		Schema Owner
and an average of the second se	BC Oracle AS Repository	/ Components	
AND TRUE DATE	ill@FAS Common Sche	mas	
Contenary Contenary	Metadata Serv	ices	RS8_MDS
	Audit Services		R58_MU
Contraction of the second second	Audit Services	Audit Services Append	
	Audit Services Viewer		RS8_IAU_VIEWER
	Cracle Platform	n Security Services	RS8_OPSS
	B User Messagin	ig Service	RS0_UMS
	WebLogic Services Oracle Enterprise Sched		RSB_WLS
			ESS
	Common Infra	structure Services	FSR_STA
	∃⊠SOA Suite		
	S0A Infrastruc	ture	RS8_SOAINFRA
	Cratte Data Integ		
	Cracke ColdenCat	1	
	Crane EDQ		
	Messages	٠	
Help			<back next=""> Emint Cancel</back>

In addition to the OSB requirement, RSB needs a table created for its own functioning. RSB Instrumentation collects meta data and payload of the services invoked and persists into this table. It is recommended to keep the RSB table in a schema separate from OSB Schema.

Note: See also RCU User Guide https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/1221/core/RCUUG/toc.htm

7 RSB Home

The RSB configuration and installation process follows the RSB lifecycle phases. Each of the lifecycle phases can be managed by a certain role. To support the separation of roles and responsibilities and to clearly define these phases, RSB has adopted a specific directory structure. The tools required for each of these roles are provided within this directory structure.

This directory structure supports access permissions to different tools that are managed according to the site-specific business requirements. For example, a systems administrator can be given access permissions to all the tools, while a RSB administrator or applications administrator can be provided access to only certain operation tools.

The RSB directory structure is fixed and is created by the RSB kernel tar file: **RsbKernel<version>ForAll<version>Apps_eng_ga.tar**.

The rsb-home is a controlled structure and there are very specific rules for using the tools and the key files within it. A key rule is that the tools scan and check versions of all files within rsb-home.

Directory Structure and Key Files

RSB uses a well defined directory structure for the lifecycle management of the services. rsb-home is the root of this directory structure. Each of the lifecycle operation has a subdirectory under it. These are

- download-home: All the component archives are downloaded into subdirectory under this directory. This directory contains following additional subdirectories.
 - all-app-service-decorator: Download location of all the decorator archives.
 - all-business-process-service-decorator: This is for future use.
 - all-functional-business-process: This is for future use.
 - all-functional-service-int-flow: Download location of all the service integration flow archives.
- service-assembly-home: This subdirectory hosts the service compilation related configurations and scripts
- deployment-home: This subdirectory has all the deployment configurations and deployment scripts.

Each of the lifecycle directories has one or more of the following subdirectories

- bin: contains all the executables
- conf: contains all the configuration files

log: contains all the log files

The structure of the directory is shown below. Files are shown in *italics* and scripts are shown in *bold-italics*.



Deployment Property File

Deployment property file (rsb-deployment-env-info.properties) is where you make most, if not all, of the configurations you need to make to configure RSB for your

enterprise. The details of the properties in the file are described later in the document. During upgrades, it is recommended to backup this file and restore after extracting the RSB kernel. After any changes are made to this file, RSB must be compiled and the affected components must be redeployed.

check-version-and-unpack.sh

This script is run after the download of components or during upgrade. It checks for version compatibility and extracts each downloaded archive to its appropriate location in rsb-home.

rsb-compiler.sh

This script compiles the configurations into the deployable components. Any change in the configuration must be compiled to take effect. When you are running the script for the very first time it should be called as

> rsb-compiler.sh -setup-security-credential

This is to setup the security credential information for databases, WebLogic console, and so on. The security information is persisted to

rsb-home/deployment-home/conf/security folder in an encrypted credential wallet file (cwallet.sso). For subsequent compilations the -setup-security-credential parameter is not needed. It is recommended to backup the security folder to save data entry in case of any reinstallation.

rsb-deployer.sh

This script deploys the specified component to WebLogic server. The WebLogic server must be running for the deployment to work. The script has many options as described below. You cannot combine options in a single step.

-deploy-rsb-service <Decorator Jar File>

This option is used to deploy a single decorator. Specify the jar file name as the parameter.

-deploy-all-rsb-service

This option is used to deploy all the decorator services for all the apps in scope.

-deploy-all-rsb-service-for-app <appName>

This option is used to deploy all the decorator services for the specified app.

-prepare-wls

This option is used to create and configure WebLogic for RSB installation. This option does the following configurations:

- Creates the required data sources for RSB (jdbc/rsbAdminDs). Database user ID and password are taken from the wallet file created at compile time.
- Sets the log file size and number of log files to keep
- Creates the Log Filter (RsbLogFilter) and log broadcasting configurations.
- Creates the data retirement policies for all servers.

-undeploy-rsb-service <Decorator Jar Name>

This option is used to undeploy a single service.

-undeploy-all-rsb-service

This option is used to undeploy all the decorator services for all apps in scope.

-undeploy-all-rsb-service-for-app <appName>

This option is used to undeploy all the services of the specified app.

download-app-service-wsdl.sh

This script is used only if one or more services are attached with security Policy A or B. The usage of the script is:

```
download-app-service-security-policy.sh [-a] [-s] [-u] [-h]
-a,--app <app> Download by application. <app> is the acronym of the application.
```

For example, rms, sim etc

-h,--help Show usage information
-s,--service <app service-name> Download a single service. Specify app and
service name separated by space

As shown above the script can be called for an app or for a service. If no parameters are specified, the script downloads the WSDLs for all the apps in scope. If you are running the script for an app or a service, it checks if the corresponding app is in scope. If the services are secured with https, make sure the trust certificates are in the trust store used by the script (conf/rsb-builder-internal-trust-store.jks)

generate-rsb-decorator-security-config.sh

This script is used only if one or more services are attached with security Policy A or B.

This script is run with no parameters. It generates all the internal configuration files required to configure RSB for the selected policy. The policy information is extracted from the downloaded WSDL.

setup-message-protection-security-credentials.sh

This script is used only if one or more services are attached with security Policy B.

This script captures credential information required for Policy B configuration and stores in the wallet file. Following information is captured.

- keystore-csf-key: Keystore password for the RSB server policy B keystore.
- RSB Server Alias. This alias name is server -public-private-key-alias prefixed with short hostname (hostname without the domain name) of the RSB server. For example, rsbhost-public-private-key-alias

Following two aliases are setup for each application in scope that has Policy B configured.

- -remote-host-public-key-alias prefixed with app name and short host name of the edge app server. For example, sim-simhost-remote-host-public-key-alias
- -user-alias prefixed with app name and service name. For example, igs-ASNInPublishing-user-alias. This alias will store the username and password used by the edge app for the services.
configure-rsb-app-server-for-security-policy-b.sh

This script is used only if one or more services are attached with security Policy B.

This script does the following configuration changes:

- Creates WebLogic users for the applications using policy B. The usernames and passwords are taken from the credential wallet file. These credentials are set at when the previous script (setup-message-protection-security-credentials.sh) was run.
- Updates domain wallet file for OWSM security configuration. For each app the encryption alias and passwords set the service assemble phase is read from the wallet file. The domain wallet file is updated with the information collected at the time of setup.
- Updates the JPS config with keystore file (<server host> + -keystore.jks) and private key alias (<server host> + -public-private-key-alias).

8

RSB Paks

This chapter describes RSB paks.

App Service Decorator

Decorator paks contain the proxy and business service definitions of the services provided by the application. There is one pak for each application. Decorators are generated using Retail SOA Enabler (RSE) tool. The RSE tool uses the service definition xml file as input for generating the decorators. The generated decorator is included in the archive generated by RSE. The decorator paks are available as zip archives. The decorator paks of the applications in scope must be downloaded and copied into the specified directory in the service-assembly-home directory.

The list of all app service decorator paks in this release is given in Appendix A.

Note: See also the Oracle Retail SOA Enabler (RSE) Guide.

Business Process Service Decorator

This is not currently used, it is a placeholder for future functionality.

Functional Business Process

This is not currently used, it is a placeholder for future functionality.

Functional Service Integration Flow

RSB Functional Integration Flows are OSB integration services that are not decorators. Decorators have one proxy service and one business service tied to the proxy. Any other type of integration service should be placed under this category.

This pak contains the proxy service which serves as the router service for the incoming payload. Depending on the message family and message type of the incoming payload, the proxy service routes the service to appropriate decorators.

RSB and **RIB**

RSB implements a synchronous request-reply based integration pattern while RIB implements near real time asynchronous fire and forget integration pattern. RSB is implemented using Web Services while RIB uses JMS. RSB and RIB can exist independently. However, they are different types of integration and in many cases they complement each other. They can co-exist in an enterprise. Both implementations can be bridged using IGS for RIB bound transactions and Injector service for RSB bound transactions.

In RSB integration errors have to be handled by the consumer. RSB does not offer any retry mechanism like RIB. RIB and RSB are not mutually exclusive. Both can be implemented together and both RIB and RSB can communicate with each other. RSB does not replace RIB. It complements RIB with the request reply type of integration. RSB can be clustered in active - active mode. RSB does not need sequencing of messages.

RIC is designed as a consolidated view of both RSB and RIB, if each exists. The current version of RIC shows RIB configuration and transaction data, in addition to RSB configuration and transaction data.

Note: See also the *Oracle Retail Integration Console Guide*.

RIB	RSB
JMS Publish - Subscribe	Web Services on OSB
Guaranteed Delivery	Consumer gets error on failure
Failed Message Recovery	Consumer has to manage errors
Fire-and-Forget	Request Response
XSD Schema	XSD, XSLT, WSDL
	Remote Invocation
Only active-passive cluster supported	Active-active cluster supported
Near real-time response	Real-time response

Table 9–1 RIB Vs RSB

10

RSB and **JMX**

This section describes the RSB JMX infrastructure. JMX is a specification that provides capability for runtime management of Java components. WebLogic server implements JMX specification. RSB uses JMX for collecting useful information for monitoring the functioning of the integration infrastructure.

Any third party JMX console compatible with the Java EE container can be used to manage RSB components. In RSB some of information captured by OSB MBeans are collected and reported in context through the administrating application (RIC).

Note: See also JMX Specification http://docs.oracle.com/javase/7/docs/technotes/guide s/jmx/JMX_1_4_specification.pdf.

Metrics Data

In RIC, the following metrics are captured using JMX. The metrics data is collected by OSB from all the managed servers on regular interval. The default interval is 10 minutes. The interval for each service (Proxy and Business) can be changed in EM console. The following graphic shows a proxy service aggregation interval field location, in case it is required to change.

CRACLE Enterprise Manager Fusion Motor	Neirie Control 120										d without *	0
and and the terms												
Target Navigation	service bus @									.opporter.at weblingte	Винсьные	
100.0	ff teron ha*								Papel	lehelrei Aug 26, 20	5 94812 49151	0
> Di Asekone Datoverte > Di Xia	Dathers Antrates	Service	Anna and Beauge	Operations	Des trimps							
* Maryini has (Administrati)	-/ Search											
El in-Cutore Apple-Apple	Tare Procederates		Date	a 🖬								
and Advanced Dense That Autor Apple Codecar	Inter P		Penharing	M 🗐								
🔄 ana-Castanardhiler Appfan icebaca atar	Aut.		21.4 Hirty									
International and the second secon			Wannie Traine									. 1
 am-Fullio de Carlen Agelier Adoctates am-Fullio de Carlen Agelier Adoctates 											Seat. Next	£ I
and before the second	/ Operations										ALIGNEDA PERMIT	e
ane PapergDeters Appler coDecarder	And And A	tine (11
Interfluction Status Agebra validation and	and the second second							Assessment	low-st.			- 1
 ans-leady Separation Automatics Apple Au	New /	ne .			194	N ton	D Hydere	-		Appropriate Different	E Patrice	
V Di metugationen	Linksonthered	million	Paner Buthatur Appler	where the second	Providence	100	2	227994		2.8	00	2
> 🔁 Hercadate Kapastores	1 Manufiguert	and Advanced	Nementhan Replac	of an about the	Press Service		26	127814		XN.	00	
Contraction of the second s	1 SpCuttonerApplane	m-Curaner &	ade observe heads	FV0#	Press Service	18	N.	phone.		星科	60	
	Coloredgelers	m Catane A	ader-colous star Provide	rvie -	Press Service	. W	-96	117910		居作	0.0	11
	Sconeolese.	ans Culture C	hie Apternationaler)	visuberes .	Press Service	96	96	10780		说的	00	
	2 Cutore Order 4	micaned	He Apple Apple Apple Apple	*puteros	Proclamite	-36	18	157919		逆州	0.0	11
	\$hitoarcroc	unifulficiar	CanotCarthe-Apple void	center/hood	Presidente	.98	- 98	127816		泥包	0.0	11
	\$2NROBICHUK	un fulficiar	Canal Canal And Investor	earster/Preval	Press Service	-96	8	127610	۲	化化	50	11
	\$1480-brCeler	1047,/80.0r	Certin-Apple codecard	n/hus/devea	Providencial	- 18	8	121916	۲	10.01	00	11
	\$25/80-br(alter	ant/Rose	Carlies-Applier-visibecevel	Poplaria	Anna Server	-96	- 98	107914		房田	150	
	Contraction Tartes	and the balance	a Tahanaa Aaslan cobaa	rain Providers	Price larves	14	9	101984	- F#	10.00	10	61

RIC retrieves the metric data from EM when the user visits the Metrics Graphs tab. Since EM metric collection is decided by the collection interval, the data shown in RIC can be out of sync by a maximum delay of the interval. So, in a default configuration the metric data can be outdated by a maximum of 10 minutes.

In order for the alerts to work, it should be enabled in the global settings. These are enabled by default. Following screen shows the location to enable alerts in the EM Console.



Success and failure count

This count shows the number of successful invocations and number of failures of decorator and app service for the past 24 hours.

Min, max and average response time

This information shows minimum, maximum and average response time of service operations for the past 24 hours.

Success and Failure count for operations

This is a count of success and failure by operations for the past 24 hours.

Business and SLA Alerts

Review the *Oracle Retail Service Backbone Developers Guide* for instructions on adding Business and System Alerts.

Alert Purging

The performance of alert retrieval is affected by the number of alerts in the system. As the number of alerts grows, the retrieval becomes slow. This becomes evident in the alert screen of RIC application. The screen rendering gets slower as the number of alerts increases over time. Here are a couple of ways to purge the alert.

 Purge the alert through EM console. From the EM console dashboard navigate to the Alert History for SLA and Pipeline alerts. Search for an alert based on a specific search criteria and click on Purge to purge the alert.

CHRACILE Enterprise Manager Fusion Matte	san Contra 121	4-	iig+ C
designed and			
Target Manipalian	service bax #	zappel in an weblaged 🕃 on the Program for factor (Aug. 26, 2011) And 25	La sada sa
 Statute Sciences Stat Stat Statute Sciences Statute Sciences Sciences Sciences 	Setter: Methody Second American Second	n Maturaj Series # 4	
ani, ch ann 10 per triadicale regionadore ani, ch anno 10 per triadicale regionadore ani, chater bio angle readicace ani, chilo per cyrche again readicace anin, chilo per cyrche	Antipana * Antipana Antonia (R. Roman Series Q.	D has D for the set	
ere riski terketari everete ferendeller er kalerente everete ferendeller er kalerente bekap teren bekap teren	Tenetare Anti-Lange Mart Swelv In Anti Tuni	lana jana ta	

- The following graphic shows how to reset statistics using EM Console
 - Select **Service Health** tab.
 - Choose Since Last Reset option for Display Statistics drop-down.
 - Click **Reset Statistics**.

_

	and the second second second								
Tanget Mavigation	service base. (2)							suggest to all works	and Contracts
Test #	All formation *						The state	Infration Res. 18	MUCH MADE ANY NOT
Calebrater September									
1 C2 104	Suffrand Merrison	Service States, Surgery State	mant (Associate Andrews	Contract of Contract					
- M annahar bas (Makakharan)									
E2 or Carbine dealer colocy are	The Party Street and	and the second second	201 10						
Contract of the second se	- Search								
The second secon	Server Parts	invite (m)	Device Parameters	 	-				
	Same 1			100 - 100 - 10	aria.				
and the state of the second second				The local div					
The stand which the local damage and the local									
startisticketari tagiler influentar	And and a state of the state of		•						TRADE OF TRADE
Construction of the second sec									Contract of the local division of the local
The state from the second seco	- Services								
State of the second	then it from								
Encoderate Contracting for cost into more than	inere.	Aut	Tore Aut	10000	Aug. Trees. Treatment of	-	- Bringer	12.4.80010	Partie Series
(2 tellinge Takan	Bard and an other	are blue without that are	Manage Taxonet						100
Call Strength of Strength on the	Bard-seetfraners.	produce entropy and and	Promy Derivery	-					
	Splanne hafter on	and provide the first building way	Manage State State						
	· Spinster later in	and planet apply unlikely the	Wang the local	-					
	Second Second	and Contained Trade Station and De-	Winey Dervice						-
	Saf Language (yr dan Appr)	and Commercial de Capitar realize	Wang Darring	-					
	San president and provide	and Public der (and Control App.	Water Carden						
	Sprummer constra	and Public declaruation has app.	WHEN DECKS						
	Second second	and Public de Carlon destroy out.	Water Darvied						
	and the second second	And a fugate description of the second	where the rest						
		and the state of stress factor.	Without Clar visit	-					
		and the second second second second	and the set						
	-	and the design of the second	and the second	-					
				-					
	the second second		Warry Street	-					
	Report Frankrister	and the state in the local state in the state of the	Annual Internation						
	Research Street Street	see the Window State of Souther and	Rear Inc.						
	Revealed States State	and incide Descent Descent A	Status Service				12		
	Second strengthered	and the size of the second sec	Wanty Stations						
	A contractor		Anna Innian Anna Innian	-	-	-	-	-	

Note: See also Oracle Service Bus Guides.

11 RSB Tools

RSB comes with following supporting tools to help the implementation.

SIT Tools

There are two types of SIT tools: JSIT and PSIT. SIT tools are used to mimic provider edge applications. JSIT mimics Java applications and PSIT mimics PLSQL applications.

Since RSB is an integration product, it cannot be tested standalone. Ideally it needs the edge applications deployed. SIT tools comes handy in situations where one or more edge applications are not available. The role of the edge application can be taken by the SIT tool. In fact, RSB configuration can be validated without even a single edge app.

A single instance of JSIT/PSIT can mimic one or more edge apps.

The SIT Tool distribution is a separate download. In this release SIT tools are supported only on JEE 7 servers (e.g., WebLogic 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)).

JSIT

JSIT delivers a Java EE application called

javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>.ear. The RSE generated Java EE provider ejb-jar for a provider edge application gets merged into the JSIT ear (**javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>.ear**) at application assembly time and can be deployed to Glassfish (Java EE 7) and WebLogic 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0) (Java EE 7+) application server. After deployment, all the web services in the RSE ejb-jar get exposed by the JSIT ear. You can use any WSDL consumer API/Tool to call the web services immediately after deployment without any lengthy configuration process.

SOAP-UI works very well to create the service consumer (WSDL client) without having to write any code, but application developers can use any API of their choice to call the WSDL based web service. When the web service gets called the JSIT engine will generate a mock but fully defined response soap xml with dummy data. It generates a hash of the request soap xml and persist the request/response data for future/subsequent use. The user can modify and fine tune their response soap xml by editing the persisted data using the JSIT webapp which is also included in the JSIT ear (javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>.ear).

The JSIT Tool can be accessed through the URL http://<hostname>:<port>/javaee-service-interface-tester-web16.0.030

Download and Prepare JSIT

- 1. Download and extract JavaEeSit16.0.030ForAll16.x.xApps_eng_ga.zip
- **2.** Copy javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>.ear to an install stage folder, referred as SIT_JAVAEE_APP_HOME.
- **3.** Download and save RSE generated JavaEE ejb-jar (<app>-service-ejb.jar) in SIT_JAVAEE_APP_HOME. <app> is the application name that hosts the application service. For example, sim-service-ejb.jar.

Merge the two components:

```
jar -uvf javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>.ear <app>-service-ejb.jar
```

The above command can be repeated with any number of <app>-service-ejb.jar files.

Deploy JSIT to WebLogic 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)

- 1. Open WebLogic 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0) Console.
 - **a.** Go to the Deployments page and click **Install**. Upload or browse to javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>.ear. Click **Next**.
 - b. Select Install this deployment as an application. Click Next.
 - c. Select the target server. Click Next.
 - d. Click Finish to Deploy.
 - e. Configure a group and user for JSIT. Click Security Realms.
 - f. Click the default realm.
 - g. Click the Groups tab. Add a group called sitadmin.
 - h. Click the Users tab. Add a new user. Add the new user to the sitadmin group.

Note: Do not change the default application name. It must be kept as javaee-service-interface-tester-<version>. JSIT web app is accessible at http://<host>:<port>/javaee-service-interface-tester-web-<version>/faces/index.xhtml.

Sector State of Sector States and Sector Sec		***************		
	Danjarja (Alah Bi mania		line.
ne manezeni	A. LOUGH.		Auto	and an and a second
Sind 12 (12) (12) (12) (12) (12) (12) (12) (SALL IN CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACT OF A DESCRIPTION OF A DE			<u>0 /m</u> // 10
 Control constraints, Constraint	Control Conference and Allinear and Decoded and Provide Allinear and Allinear an	ana ang ang ang bagana	("2004", Consent of Co	n Falloudainian (<u>1998)</u>
- special infrare, privile collination in a second part of the seco	San Land An Anna Service And San Land Anna Service And Anna Langer And Service And And Service And Anna Langer and Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna A		مىرمور 🗐 بىر شەخەرە تەرىخەر بەلغار	
Statis Linkson, S. M. S.	Shari Mi Sahame Shifee Balan a Sahame Shifee Jinta ang ber than an a seriet - and the and the strength of the seriet from a series of the seri			<u>.</u>
	adarcodd Pergellenic and Converse Develope)	FREEZENAN CONCEPTER AND CO	CONTRACTOR ACCESSION ACCESSION TO A STATE	and Constitution 1 1 1.200000.2
- Control Process (2010)* Street Leader Trange, Control Process, Sold Leader Control Pro- very Transition Managing Control Process (2011)* Sector Band Control Control Control Control Process (2011)* Sector Band Control Cont	* Held The Barge and Cheek Held State (The The Date of Held Address and Address and Mediate and The The Date of Held Address and Address Mediate and The Print physical and the Mediate and The Print physical and the Mediate and The Print physical and the Mediate and The Print physical and the Address and the Print Physical and The Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and The Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and The Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and The Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Address and The Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Address and The Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Address and the Physical Address and the Address and t			
CONTRACTORING THEORY AND AND THE THEORY AND	(a) the contract of the con	INCLUSION CONTINUES.		ngalan menjadakan di berm

PSIT

This section describes the PSIT related details.

Installation and Setup

To install and set up PSIT, take the following steps:

1. Extract the PlsqlSit16.0.030ForAll16.x.xApps_eng_ga.tar

For example, tar -xvf PlsqlSit16.0.030ForAll16.x.xApps_eng_ga.tar

This creates plsql-service-interface-tester.

- **2.** Update database details in psit.properties available under plsql-service-interface-tester/conf folder.
- 3. Launch SIT Menu to perform plsql sit operations.

For example, sh sitmenu.sh

SIT Menu looks as shown in following window:



Menu Options

Database Credentials Setup

Database Credential Setup is a onetime operation. It is done corresponding to server details provided in psit.properties files. Make sure that server name, port and sid are correct before performing this step.

- 1. Select Menu Option 1 to setup Database credentials.
- **2.** Console provides with option to add/modify/delete credentials. Select appropriate option and once done, press D to return to the main menu.

PLSQL SIT Schema Setup

It is a one-time process which creates oracle objects in the database. Before starting the setup, make sure that all Oracle objects (that is, sqls) are copied into Scripts folder from the retail-public-payload-database-object-types-<version> located under RibFuncArtifact<Version>ForAll<version>Apps_eng_ga. Only the scripts present in the scripts folder are executed for schema setup.

- 1. Select Menu Option 2 to start the setup.
- **2.** On success, console returns Schema Setup Complete message with no errors or exceptions.

Configure Service(s)

Configuring Service(s) operation creates procedures and implements procedure body in database. It takes ServiceProviderDefLibrary.xml from plsql-service-interface-tester/conf location as input and generates StoredProcedureMetaData.xml. By default, a ServiceProviderDefLibrary.xml is provided in the conf folder.

- Select Menu Option 3 to start the configuring service(s) listed in ServiceProviderDef.xml.
- **2.** On success, console returns Configuration Complete message with no errors or exceptions.

Update EAR with Database Details

This option will update the plsql-service-interface-tester-web-<version>.war file with database credentials provided in psit.properties

Testing PSIT

1. Get the live/deployed RSE generated web services (for example, PayTermService) WSDLs

Your Web Browser > WebLogic Deployment page > RSE generated Web Service's ear > Testing > Expand Service (for example, PayTerm) > Under Testing point, click? WSDL > Copy the WSDL URL from browser.

- **2.** Start SOAPUI and create a new project (if needed) to import the WSDL.
 - Right click and add/import the WSDL into the project.
 - Open Request 1 window for your test web service operation.
 - Edit the SOAP Request XML in the request editor. Find ? and replace-all with 1 for a quick test or hand edit the request xml with your test data.
 - Click the > (submit request) button on top. If everything went okay you should get a SOAP response XML (not fault) in the response window.

The SOAP response XML is a mock response, automatically generated by PSIT.

Deploying the plsql-service-interface-tester-app-16.0.030.ear

Take the following steps to deploy the ear file:

- 1. The plsql-service-interface-tester-app-16.0.030.ear is available in PlsqlSit16.0.030ForAll16.x.xApps_eng_ga.tar download.
- 2. Edit psit.properties with database credentials of PSIT schema
- **3.** Execute the Menu Option 4 from SIT Menu, this option updates the ear file with database credentials provided in psit.properties.
- **4.** Deploy the ear file on the application server.
- **5.** Configure a group and user for PSIT. To do this, log in to the WebLogic console and click **Security Realms**.
- **6.** Click the default realm.
- 7. Click the **Groups** tab. Add a group called sitadmin.
- 8. Click the Users tab. Add a new user. Add the new user to the sitadmin group.
- 9. Verify the UI is accessible from by using launch option from the WebLogic console.

RIC

Retail Integration Console (RIC) is a web based application distributed along with RSB. This application is deployed as a part of the RSB installation. The application can be access by the URL http://<host>:<port>/rsb-admin.



Note: Review the *Oracle Retail Service Backbone Integration Console Guide* for more details.

Instrumentation in RSB

In RSB the service consumers and providers communicate through RSB layer. The consumers call a proxy service in RSB and RSB calls the service providers using business service. This decoupling provides many benefits, once of which is the opportunity for instrumentation. The service calls are intercepted and useful information extracted and persisted without affecting the functionality. RSB uses instrumentation to get the meta data of services for reporting, analyzing and troubleshooting.

Decorator Service Instrumentation in RSB

In RSB the instrumentation is done in the decorator module. The service invocation is intercepted and the data fields are captured and persisted to the database configured at the deployment. This process is done asynchronously so that performance of the main flow is not directly affected. The data fields are persisted to rsb_service_activity table.

RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY Table: Table Structure Definition

Column Name	Data Type	Nullable?	Description
ACTIVITY_NUM	NUMBER(19,0)	No	Generated unique number.
ACTIVITY_STATE	VARCHAR2(8 BYTE)	Yes	Can have RESPONSE or ERROR as value.
APPLICATION_ NAME	VARCHAR2(12 BYTE)	Yes	Name of the service provider application.
BUSINESS_ OPERATION_ NAME	VARCHAR2(256 BYTE)	Yes	The service operation name.
BUSINESS_ SERVICE_NAME	VARCHAR2(256 BYTE)	Yes	The name of OSB business service.
BUSINESS_ SERVICE_URI	VARCHAR2(256 BYTE)	Yes	Not populated by OSB.
ERROR_CODE	VARCHAR2(64 BYTE)	Yes	Error code returned by service provider.
ERROR_DETAIL	VARCHAR2(2048 BYTE)	Yes	Not populated by OSB.

Table 12–1

	/		
Column Name	Data Type	Nullable?	Description
ERROR_REASON	VARCHAR2(1024 BYTE)	Yes	Error message returned by service provider.
MESSAGE_ECID	VARCHAR2(64 BYTE)	No	Generated ID.
MESSAGE_ FAMILY	VARCHAR2(25 BYTE)	Yes	Retail Message Family.
PROXY_ OPERATION_ NAME	VARCHAR2(64 BYTE)	Yes	Name of the OSB proxy service operation.
PROXY_SERVICE_ NAME	VARCHAR2(256 BYTE)	Yes	Name of the OSB proxy service.
PROXY_SERVICE_ URI	VARCHAR2(256 BYTE)	Yes	URI of the proxy service.
REQUEST_ TIMESTAMP	TIMESTAMP(6)	Yes	The timestamp of the service request.
REQUEST_XML	CLOB	Yes	XML payload of the service request.
RESPONSE_ TIMESTAMP	TIMESTAMP(6)	Yes	The timestamp of the service response.
RESPONSE_XML	CLOB	Yes	XML payload of the service response.

Table 12–1 (Cont.)

Note: REQUEST_XML and RESPONSE_XML are populated only when the audit is enabled. See Appendix D for more details on the RSB Service Activity Table.

Broadcasting Logs

In a clustered environment the RSB components may run in any of the managed servers depending on the load of the system. Thus the log messages are distributed across the managed server logs. This posts a huge hurdle in debugging issues, since there is no way to predict which component runs in which managed server. RIC solves this problem by broadcasting the logs from all the managed servers to the admin server and providing a single place to view the consolidated log. The consolidated log file is retrieved from the server using WebLogic Diagnostic Framework (WLDF). The consolidated log can be viewed using RIC or by directly viewing the <domain name>.log in the servers/AdminServer/logs folder in the domain home. The log file name and related attributes are set in the WebLogic server during the -prepare-wls step of the deployment.

Pre-Implementation Considerations

Before the RSB is installed in an enterprise, there are many factors that need to be considered. Planning and addressing each of the factors will avoid having to reinstall or re-architect because of performance or operational problems.

The process of RSB implementation requires the creation or modification of a retailer's Enterprise Integration Architecture. Typically, retailers will already have an integration strategy, plan or architecture and products in place to integrate their current systems.

Life-cycle Management

Software applications, after being made generally available (GA), have a well defined lifecycle process. The implementer must manage and perform tasks in these phases.

- Acquire the software components
- Prepare the environment
- Assemble the application
- Deploy and start the application
- Perform day-to-day monitoring to make sure the application is running properly
- Apply code fixes to the application



RSB supports and follows the RSB Software Lifecycle Management, a well-defined process life cycle that has implemented specific tools and functionality for each of these phases.

- **Preparation Phase**: In this phase all relevant components are downloaded, extracted configured, and version compatibility checks done.
- Application Assembly Phase: In this phase, site specific configuration changes are completed. All the relevant RSB decorators and service integration flows are generated.
- Deployment Phase: In this phase, using the decorators and administration application created in the previous step and the site specific information present in a global configuration file, the decorators and applications are deployed to the application server instances.
- Operations Phase: In this phase, day-to-day operations of the decorator applications are performed.
- Maintenance Phase: In this phase, code fixes, patching and configuration changes and maintenance of the RSB are performed.

High Availability Considerations

As businesses are maturing and having to do everything quicker, better, faster, and with less resource and money they are pushing similar expectation onto their IT infrastructure. Business users are expecting more out of their IT investments, with zero down time, consistent predictable responding systems which are highly available has become basic requirements of today's business applications.

Modern business application requirements are classified by the abilities that the system must provide. This list of abilities such as availability, scalability, reliability,

auditability, recoverability, portability, manageability, and maintainability determine the success or failure of a business.

With a clustered system many of these business requirement abilities gets addressed without having to do lots of development work within the business application. Clustering directly address availability, scalability, recoverability requirements which is very attractive to a business. In reality though it is a trade-off, clustered system increases complexity, is normally more difficult to manage and secure and so one should evaluate the pros and cons before deciding to use clustering.

Oracle provides many clustering solutions and options; those relevant to RSB are WebLogic server clusters and Oracle database cluster (RAC).

WebLogic Server Cluster Concepts

A WebLogic server cluster consists of multiple WebLogic server instances running simultaneously and working together to provide increased scalability and reliability. A cluster appears to clients to be a single WebLogic server instance. The server instances that constitute a cluster can run on the same machine, or be located on different machines. You can increase a cluster's capacity by adding additional server instances to the cluster on an existing machine, or you can add machines to the cluster to host the incremental server instances. Each server instance in a cluster must run the same version of WebLogic Server.

In an active-passive configuration the passive components are only used when the active component fails. Active-passive solutions deploy an active instance that handles requests and a passive instance that is on standby. In addition, a heartbeat mechanism is usually set up between these two instances together with a hardware cluster (such as Sun Cluster, Veritas, RedHat Cluster Manager, and Oracle CRS) agent so that when the active instance fails, the agent shuts down the active instance completely, brings up the passive instance, and resumes application services.

In an active-active model all equivalent members are active and none are on standby. All instances handle requests concurrently.

An active-active system generally provides higher transparency to consumers and has a greater scalability than an active-passive system. On the other hand, the operational and licensing costs of an active-passive model are lower than that of an active-active deployment.



Note: See also Oracle[®] Fusion Middleware Using Clusters for Oracle WebLogic Server.

Oracle Database Cluster (RAC) Concepts

A cluster comprises multiple interconnected computers or servers that appear as if they are one server to end users and applications. Oracle Database Real Application Clusters (Oracle RAC) enables the clustering of the Oracle database. Oracle RAC uses Oracle Clusterware for the infrastructure to bind multiple servers so that they operate as a single system.

Single-instance Oracle databases have a one-to-one relationship between the Oracle database and the instance. Oracle RAC environments, however, have a one-to-many relationship between the database and instances. In Oracle RAC environments, the cluster database instances access one database. The combined processing power of the multiple servers can provide greater throughput and scalability than is available from a single server. Oracle RAC is the Oracle database option that provides a single system image for multiple servers to access one Oracle database. In Oracle RAC, each Oracle instance usually runs on a separate server.

Oracle RAC technology provides high availability and scalability for all database applications. Having multiple instances access a single database prevents the server from being a single point of failure. Oracle RAC enables capability to combine smaller commodity servers into a cluster to create scalable environments that support mission critical business applications.

Recommended Deployment Options

There are no physical location constraints on where RSB and edge applications are deployed as long as they are visible from the same network. But the decision on where to physically and logically locate your decorators and applications has impact on the high availability, performance and maintainability of your integration solution, so this decision must be given careful consideration.

Cluster Deployment

The supported deployment configuration for RSB is cluster. However, for development purposes non-cluster deployment can be used.

A cluster configuration will have following server instances:

- AdminServer
- HTTP Proxy server
- One or more managed servers

AdminServer is used to manage the cluster. Optionally, you can also use a node manager for startup and shutdown of managed servers.

The HTTP Proxy server acts as the load balancer proxy server for the cluster. The service consumers will connect to the proxy server port. The proxy server will redirect the call to one of the managed servers, depending on the load balancing algorithm chosen at the configuration time. The default load balancing algorithm is round-robin.

Managed servers do the actual work of the service invocation. The decorators are deployed to the managed servers. A cluster can have one or more managed servers. Even though cluster configuration supports one managed server, it really doesn't make sense to have a cluster with single managed server. So for all practical purposes, the minimum number of managed servers must be two. The configuration of all the managed servers in the cluster is same except for one of the managed server. One managed server has a special role of hosting singleton components in addition to being a member of the managed server pool. Typically, this is the first managed server configured in the cluster. There is no user input needed to identify or configure this managed server.

HTTPS Cluster Configurations

If you want the cluster configured for https, you have to do a few additional configurations to make it work in RSB.

1. Enable https port for AdminServer, Http Proxy Server and all managed servers. Specify the Listen Address. The Listen Address must match the CN entry of the server certificate. Sometimes the CN entry of the server certificate is the fully qualified name (for example, rsbhost.example.com) instead of the short hostname (for example, rsbhost). If the entries do not match, the security configurations will not work.

Change Center	Rever Lop Out	references	A Record	Help			9				
View changes and restarts	Harris in Summary In	Derivers Lend	anner1								
Ivo pending changes exist, Click the Release	Settings for rsh_t	erver3.									
Certiguration button to allow others to edit the domain.	Configuration	Protocale	ingang De	ing 1	Hardbring C	larted	Deployments	Services	Senaty	PANee	
Louis de Franc	General Curt	r terrices	Anystares	199.	Federation	Services.	Deployment	Maration	Turing	Overkad	1 1101
Release Configuration	[Bave]										
Dervain Structure Info_dervain Forware Costern Costern Costern Virtuel Hosts Scruces Scruces Scruces S	Use the page to Yes PEC free 1 Name: Hachine: Chaten Dates Addre	orfgure pers	oral features a	of this se	rver such as d rab, Oro rab,	tefault or jaar ver 1 Machine jduater	tvork oprimurie	ators,			
Haw do L. 🖯											
Centigure default network connections Oreate and configure machines	Listen Port:				15	793					
Configure duaters Start and star servers	2. Mit. Listen Pr	et Enabled									
Configure WLDF diagnostic volume	SSL Listen Part:				19	704					
Raulana Bhalina (i	1 manuar										

 Set the Front end Host (as wells as HTTP and HTTPS ports, if not configured already) for the cluster. This should match the CN entry of the certificate. Environment > Clusters > [cluster name] > HTTP.

ORACLE WebLogic Server*	Administration Consula			
Change Centre	R Party Log Dut Welcenes 20 Reart 1	A		
view changes and restarts	Horse (Summery al-Outers under disater			
ha pending changes exist. Och the Release	Settings for esh_claster			
Configuration builton to allow offices to estil the domain.	Configuration Parity Cartral De	gloyments Services Notes		
Look & date	General Passaging Servers Replace	m Ngelan Segister Service Scheduling	Overbed Health Parkerny HT	
Antese Cartyulate	(See			
Deniale Strecture				
dojomen A Richard A	This page allows plus to define the HTTP sets	ngs for this duales. These settings can be overside	er in exists setting the nexter server	of the duster
- Content - Content - Road Mathe - Road Mathe	C Providental Hunds			The of TP Researching is not observed in the presence of a reaction that is the presence of a reaction of provid and the value is all
Collection Services Collections Disaferra Nachries	Frontiend HTTP Port:	19707		The Reviews10739 Partie set when meta-one due to the presence of a freeder is graved and the value is do
Status and Studiers Comes	d Freedood HTTPS Parts	19738		The floatened HTPS Part is not offer reaccents size to the presence of a header is graved and the value is all
New do L. II	(Jane)			
Configure duaters Configure crass-duater replication				
System States				
restrict Running Servers				
E Failed (3) Critical (3)				

3. Enable Secure Replication Enabled option available in Environment > Clusters > [cluster name] > Replication.

Change Center	8 How Light References (2) Second Refs	<u></u>		
View champes and restarts		ANTS I PER, MINING		
Na pending sharingta total. Clifs the fide inter Define all and the bit allows the still the	Settings for rid_clutter			
deneis	Coeffiguration Manharts Control Designment	(Service Term		
Col) 574	Several Newsging Service Replication In	gratuat : Brightan Services : Br	decling Dividual Health	suttaing stre
Arkene Configuration	(Bèce)			
Demain Structure D-Jonan 17 Tr-Jonannet	This page is used to configure how triebuogic Server re	i replicate v777 Seasion State acro	cere durner.	
Servers - Custers - Virtual Harlo	of Cross-cluster Replication Type:	(Flame)		Appinists considering indication for the type of advices takes connected on the type of
Notable Targets Consento Servers	🖧 sinnois Chelles Milrows			S-Linko L, vege dizer - Clicter Moudor Lanoure sector receipter follows - Non Strict.
-Nothines -Noth Hanagers -Starture and Shuttown Gausse	👘 kepicatori Danisek	ReplcationChannel		The countrients to be used for institution raffic galaxies for VFP ansators and statisfic ansato to paid. "Math Italy
B Severe 2	🛃 Data Nasarut Patr Strukton Persaktenan	(Pilone)		to opport in the constant factorial as well constant for the constant factorial as well constant for the constant factorial as a set of the constant of the co
New As L	C.			Alternative and the second sec
Create 200 permit data sources Swaters Status: 40 seatts of sources	19, 23 Secure Replication Darbled			Servers in a durative mplotate content reducts. () and and turner there existence and worked models and restances of the server is a duration of the server is the restances of the server is and the server is the server restances of the server is and the server is the restances of the server is and the server is the security is of server is an expression that performance is accurate is of server.
Poled EX	- p Adversed			

4. Enable WebLogic plug-in. Select the WebLogic Plug-In Enabled option in Environment > Clusters > [cluster name] > Advanced.



Who Should Use This Configuration?

All the production deployments must use the cluster configuration. This configuration is appropriate when the machine hosting WLS is adequately sized for its job. Development environment may use a non-cluster deployment configuration.

Implementation Process

This release of RSB defines the full life cycle of the RSB software product. The RSB life cycle and phases are described in detail in the software lifecycle management section of this document. For every life cycle phases and task that RSB defines it provides corresponding tools and utilities to manage and operate on those phases.

There are several prerequisite steps that should be followed to have a successful RSB installation and deployment.

- Understand the RSB Core Concepts.
- Understand the deployment options.
- Understand the RSB life cycle.
- Understand the physical and logical requirements and limitations of the RSB Components.
- Understand the RSB Operational considerations.

The process of implementation should follow these general steps:

- Work with the teams at your organization dedicated to Oracle Retail to coordinate plans for the number and type of environments needed (for example, Dev, Integration, Production).
- Each type of environment needs to be sized, deployed, and managed in conjunction with the implementation of the Oracle Retail applications.
 - It is critical to understand the volume requirements of the production system so that the appropriate decisions can be made about the deployment option and the physical location and sizing.
- All deployments have integration to existing retailer systems. It is critical to understand the position of the RSB as it fits into the overall integration architecture and that the current operations and architecture team understand the RSB and its capabilities.
- Select a deployment option (cluster or non-cluster).
 - This may be mixed depending on the phases of deployment. Development and test may be non-clustered and production clustered.
 - Understand the operational complexities of each and plan for the staffing.
 - Work with the application server administration teams to determine the physical and logical placement of the RSB components.
 - Work with the system administrators to select the central RSB management location, rsb-home.

- The installation of the RSB has many prerequisites and dependencies that require the understanding, support and effort of database administrators, system administrators, application server administrators, and your organization's Oracle Retail application teams. It is a critical role of the RSB system administrator to work with each team, regardless of the site organization structure. See the Oracle Retail Service Backbone Installation Guide.
- Create operational plans for the RSB life cycle.
- Create plans for environment monitoring and maintenance.
- Plan for performance test. The RSB supplies tools to aid in the testing, but it is a
 difficult task that involves the database administrators, system administrators,
 application server administrators, and the Oracle Retail application teams.

Verification and Validation

Verification is the process of reviewing, inspecting, testing, and documenting that the product behaves in a manner as defined by the product requirement specification. Validation on the other hand is the process of making sure that the product's runtime behavior meets the retailer's needs and requirements. RSB provides tools and utilities to verify that a RIB installation is configured correctly and works properly when service invocations occur in your enterprise. RSB also provides tools to test integration infrastructure standalone, independent of any Oracle Retail applications.

Implementation Environment Verification

After the deployment, the implementation can be verified using RIC. RIC shows a variety of information including the diagrammatic representation of integration flows, deployment topology, server details, WSDL URLs. In addition to this, it supports verification of services by calling the ping operation. It can also test the database connectivity.

Testing the Web service calls using ping in RIC is an almost complete validation of your implementation. The ping call goes through the decorator to the edge app service and returns. Hence, if ping works, generally the implementation is correctly configured. However, ping test will not detect issues with payload version differences, certificates and keystores in the consumer side and so on.

RSB in Operation

This section contains common issues that need to be thought about and addressed by a retailer as they progress towards a production environment involving RSB. It is not a comprehensive list, nor does it seek to answer the questions, since they are very dependent on the retailer implementation. The intent of this section is to provide a starting point for a site-specific RSB operations planning effort.

Operational Considerations

RSB has built-in alerts and notification through JMX. An external system can subscribe to all of the built-ins. The JMX alerts are raised by the underlying OSB. Any JMX client adhering to JMX standard should be able to subscribe to the JMX alerts.

Log File Archive and Purge

RSB uses log4j for all of its logging control. It manages the logs size through its control file. In various phases of deployment and in triaging a problem it is often desirable or necessary to archive the logs so the logs are smaller and scanning by tools or people is easier.

The number of log files retained and size of the log files are fixed during RSB deployment. However, these configurations can be changed through the WebLogic Admin Console.

Message Flow in a Decorator Proxy Service

A message flow is associated with a proxy service. It shows various nodes in the flow of control from the proxy to business and back. Message flow provides a means to tap into the flow of control and perform any custom processing like transformation, routing etc. The flow can be modified using XSLT or XQuery as the primary programming language. The decorator already has a flow configured with calls to RSB instrumentation code. Do not modify this code, since there are a lot of RSB features dependent on the instrumentation.

Note: For more information, see the *Oracle Retail Service Backbone Developers Guide*.

Error Handling in Decorator Services

In RSB the decorator proxy services comes with a default OSB error handler at the service level. This error handler replaces the soap body with the error reason from the

edge app service and the operation name. Then the error handler calls the instrumentation code and returns a failure to the service consumer. OSB allows users to configure error handling at the message flow, pipeline, route node, and stage level.

Service and Business Alerts

Oracle Service Bus evaluates rules against its aggregated metrics each time it updates that data. When a rule evaluates to True, it raises an alert.

All the SLA alerts are shown in RIC as System Alerts and all pipeline alerts are shown as Business Alerts. You can also view the alerts through OSB console. RIC is retrieving the alerts from OSB using JMX. If the alerts are purged in OSB, they will also disappear in RIC.

Users or applications can subscribe to the alerts using JMX clients or by configuring e-mail server in OSB. See RSB Developers Guide for instructions to configure OSB server for subscription of alerts through e-mail.

RSB comes with a default SLA alert configured. Users can change the rule or add new rule depending on the business requirements.

Adding New Alerts

Both Business (pipeline) and Service (SLA) alerts can be added either through OSB console or programmatically. If the alert is added through OSB console, the alert configuration will get overwritten when the OSB project is redeployed. So it is recommended to add only temporary alerts through OSB console. Any alerts that are permanently needed must be added programmatically. SLA alerts are added at the proxy or business services. Pipeline alerts are added to the message flow. Take the following steps to add an SLA alert to a business service:

- 1. Click on the **Business Services** link in Resource Browser of OSB console.
- 2. Click the service for which you want to add the alert.

Image: Second	XRACLE' Service Bus Console	12c					No. Hope	actilizati e
Adaming						. 🔍the	AD-10	Devi 0
Anders Mell Image:	4	Advanced/ApproximationApproximation y					- A	
	American Marine	Buckhows Service Definition (Infiguration) Sector Market Radius Remaining of SLA Allost Radius New Resident least least function of the deserver. Old ¹ all is also and then infigurate all is a least function of the deserver. Old ¹ all is all is new all then all is all is all is all infigurate all is	Lation -	(in any	Age, how of	types be	∳ / X heer for for	CP (1)

3. Select the SLA Alert Rules tab. Click Add.

aaca/Nijamantiini/Kustandaptionsi offr _a äanos Service Defailition farman (Sauda) MA Mort Rabes aanary di SUA Mort Rabes tare	0.194			· ····	Service Million	3 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8 (8
encol/Approxite/Parlos/parlos/color _ incess Service Defailable Approximation Secure State Rules Approximation Secure Secure Secure Secure					9	8000
äness Service Definition Apunan Service Definition Anner V SA Alart Bakes Ner						10.4
umary of SLA Allert Bales Inne						- m m 1
**					+/8 0	FED N
nt chait franc time franch for the server. Claik "I" is will a reak part chait	Ka hee	Searchy.	Agg. Interve	forester line	Inses Section	Fearers

4. Enter Rule Name and Alert Destination corresponding to the decorator.

		No. III N. C. S. C	Contraction and Desired	-
	Absociatio	difestion/pplanetite_	8981	100
1 B & # X	Business Service	efnillen NA Alex Bales	0 ≈ × 0	*
· El Almania	Summary of 3LA Ale	(Reality	+/x 89 %	
 III in Catine Apple softwards III an Arta III an Arta III an Arta III an Arta 	tana Ya dati uko tara tara	Create SLA Alext Rule Rule Configuration Fully Configuration	^a anat Dapater Day Process Incidia Programs	
Si Advantationen ander ander Contractionen Contractionen Contractionen ander ander ander ander Contractionen ander a		* Tank invited Nationality in passes for a passe for a result		
H of all dependent		Rela Codestion		
1 2 aut/RObGenKarts Applem		Fain Tota 🗵 Studied		
1 II au FyBhlacartes Agler subco		Same y		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		methodowner analyticale Canadiant Re		
1 I an Dianglakes Aple school		Patt: ans Public de Casal Carlin Agder valoriantar		
1 🔤 en Halthiellans Aple sallere		Durt tee		
 B and involvement that plan Apple B alterna Apple Control on the Apple 		Inclusion (see 18)		
		Institution of the		
		heaven here be		
		Promis find fluir: Centrue		
		-		
	In cases little	Parameter Parameter Barranteen		

5. Construct the Alert Rule Condition as shown in the following screen:

Af an er Mannethethe also Apple viewer de a	800**
America Anti-	4 2 4 E
 Control 10 A Alor 4 Alor Control 10 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor Control 10 Alor 4 Alor Control 10 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor Control 10 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor Control 10 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor Control 10 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor 4 Alor 4 Al	And Ratebook Annuel Mathian Preserve
9 (88) no. (88)	

6. Save the alert and activate the session.

Change Creber	Weksen, weblick Connected to a pr
weblogik session	
 No.Conflicts Meni Charges 	5) New Alert Rule - My SLA Alert (sim-ActivityLock-AppServiceDeconstor/BusinessService/ActivityLockAppServiceDiz)
 Annu All Sections 	Aiest Rule Conditions Configuration
	Select Apprepation Interval for the condition : 0 . hours and 10 . mass
Resource Browser	Single Expression
Service	• Kumon - Resonance Tree
howy services	Conglex Expression
Rapiters Services	
Split-Joine	Epresien
Interface	No Alert Rule Conditions to display.
WSDCs.	
XML Schemes	End and States of States o
INSTRACES	Cancel - Cancel
3CA Bodogs	
	© Top
Transformation	
89.75	
Mills.	
Security	
Service Accounts	
Service Key Providers	
utility	
242	
Alert Destinations	
XXX Decements	

7. Click **Update** and then **Create**.

\$	AdvancedShpment8	terficulendaptervanting	
Alexander of the second s	Advanced/Shammett Buskiness Service Confuration Seamony of SLA Alo Name No and Lukes for a been	berifications SLA Abert Bales Pt Bales Create SLA Abert Bale Cardina Agorgation Interval UD Wis Condition Balder Condition Balder	

8. Activate the session.

Advance different dif	ACLE Service Bus Console	12c			Loto * Toto * antidoge *
According					Startings Summer Million Erente
Second	9	Advanced Sigment Builds at an Applement Size ,			8991
i i huijo:		Business Service Definition			
I de contract-Applie-Colomande participande entrational Applie-Colomande (Contract-Applie-Colomande	I Mittania	Summary of SLA Kert Rules			+/x 00 t
Interview of the second of	1 III en Gatane Applie volleurate	Tate	Auto Tanto	Secenty App. Interval	Expirator Date Praces Institute Projuging
and candor Parage Baddy show Arefur	Bitlen Bitlen 2 Sensel SuperStrandshatten Appl 3 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 4 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 5 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 6 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 7 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 8 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 9 Bitlenspect SuperStrandshatten Appl 9 Bitlenspect Appl 9	(and a second	2 tunn	tura a) 1194	B) Detus (a) they fee

Note: See also Oracle Service Backbone Developers Guide.

Performance Monitoring

The decorator services are designed for minimal impact on the service invocation. However, there can be many reasons for a slow-performing system. RSB provides helpful information to identify potential reasons for performance drop. RIC is very useful in narrowing down the components that may be causing the performance issues. RIC provides different ways to monitor the performance of service invocation. In the RSB Integration Summary tab of RIC, you can view the CPU and Memory usage of RSB servers. So, if the RSB server is the bottleneck in the performance flow, it would be indicated by a high CPU usage and/or memory usage.

In the RSB Integration Summary tab, the applications are shown in the graph against the average response time. This graph helps in identifying applications that are slow. This potentially indicates slow application servers or network performance issue to slow performing application servers.

Performance tab under Performance and Diagnostics, you can query for slow performing services or high volume service. If the performance issue is at a service level, it can be identified here.

System Logs screen is another place to look for any log entry that would point towards the causes of performance degradation. RIC provides a consolidated view of logs from all the domain servers. Users can also filter to log entries by severity, timestamp, server and so on.

OSB Console

OSB console is the operational console for Oracle Service Bus. OSB console helps to perform many operational tasks of the OSB hosted applications.

- Manage Transport, SOAP binding and Message handling configurations
- Manage Monitoring, Throttling and Tracing configurations
- Manage SLA alert rules
- Manage Security Policies
- Export WSDLs
- Export Projects

Note: See also Oracle® Service Bus Guides.

Service Activity Table Growth and Purge

The service activity table stores the data collected by instrumentation. The services for which trace is enabled are intercepted and meta data is persisted in this table. If audit is enabled, the payload is also saved to the database. There will be one row per each service invocation.

RSB system will not remove any records from this table. The table will grow with each call of the instrumented service.

Each implementation should design their own purge strategy for the service activity table. This may depend on various factors like

- How many days of historical data have to be maintained.
- The average volume of transactions per day.
- How many services are audit enabled.

If the table is not purged, the data will grow indefinitely.

Support Staff Requirements

RSB requires OSB as the infrastructure component. This is one of the main differences between RSB and other Oracle Retail applications. Thus, familiarity of OSB is an additional skill requirement for support staff of RSB.

Administration and Logging

This chapter describes the RSB's administration and logging options.

RSB Deployment Properties

RSB has following configuration properties to customize the RSB installation to your environment. After any configuration changes, the rsb-compiler must be run and then decorators should be deployed to the server.

JAVA_HOME

This variable must point to the JDK home folder. This is a mandatory property.

For example

JAVA_HOME=/u00/java/jdk1.8.0_65.64bit

rsb-deployment-env-info.service-provider-app-in-scope-for-integration

This property holds the list of applications that act as service providers. The list is a comma separated list of the short app names.

For example,

rsb-deployment-env-info.service-provider-app-in-scope-for-integration=rms,igs,sim, cm, oms, ooc, mms, rwms, fin, rpm, rm, co, rob, tps, rce

rsb-deployment-env-info.service-requester-app-in-scope-for-integration

This property holds the list of applications that act as service consumers. The list is a comma separated list of the short app names.

For example,

rsb-deployment-env-info.service-requester-app-in-scope-for-integration=rms, rwms, sim, rpm, mms, reim, pos, ooc, oms, fin, rib4oms, rxm

rsb-osb-container.domain-name

This property holds the name of the WebLogic domain where the RSB is deployed.

For example,

rsb-osb-container.domain-name=rsb_domain

rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.home

This property holds the WebLogic domain home directory of the RSB installation. Replace the <Domain Name> with actual domain name.

For example,

```
rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.home=/u00/rsb/Oracle/Middleware/user_
projects/domains/rsb_domain
```

rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.cluster-name

This property holds the name of the cluster used when configuring the domain.

For example,

 ${\tt rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.cluster-name=rsb_cluster}$

rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.<Cluster Name>.http-url

This property holds the URL for the HTTP Proxy server of the cluster.

For example,

rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.rsb_cluster.http-url=http://rsbhost.example.com:19707

rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.<Cluster Name>.https-url

This property holds the https URL for the HTTP Proxy server of the cluster. This property is needed only if the services are secured with https policies (like PolicyA).

For example,

rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.rsb_cluster.https-url=https://rsbhost.example:19708

rsb-osb-container<Domain Name>.admin-server-http-url

This property holds the URL for the Admin server of the cluster

For example,

rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.admin-server-http-url=http://rsbhost.example:19701

rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.admin-server-connection-url

This property holds the connection URL for the Admin server of the cluster.

For example,

rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.admin-server-connection-url=t3://rsbhost:19701

rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.<Cluster Name>.managed-servers

This property holds the names of managed servers in the cluster. The names are comma separated.

For example,

rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.rsb_cluster.managed-servers=rsb_server1,rsb_server2
rsb-osb-container.<Domain Name>.<Cluster Name>.<Managed Server>.managed-server-connection-url

This property holds the connection URL for each of the managed servers in the cluster. There should be one line item for each of the managed servers.

For example,

```
rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.rsb_cluster.rsb_
server1.managed-server-connection-url=http://rsbhost.example.com:19703
```

```
rsb-osb-container.rsb_domain.rsb_cluster.rsb_
server2.managed-server-connection-url=http://rsbhost.example.com:19705
```

service-infrastructure-db.jdbc-url

This property holds the JDBC URL for the schema where the RSB_SERVICE_ ACTIVITY table resides.

For example,

service-infrastructure-db.jdbc-url=jdbc:oracle:thin:@rsbhost.example.com:1521:orcl

edge-app-container.<App>.connection-url

This property holds the connection URL for the edge application servers where the services are hosted. There must be one line item for each of the applications in scope.

For example,

```
edge-app-container.rms.connection-url=t3://rsbhost.example.com:19720
```

edge-app-container.sim.connection-url=t3://rsbhost.example.com:19721

global.app-service-end-point-url-pattern=http://<HTTP_HOSTNAME>:<HTTP_ PORT>/<SERVICE_NAME>Bean/<SERVICE_NAME>Service

This property holds the URL pattern of the edge application web services. This pattern is used to generate the actual URLs of the services. Do not replace the entries in upper case with any values. This hard coded text, which gets replaced by the values taken from other property by the compiler. You should not change that text. You can modify the pattern (except the uppercase entries) to match the service URL. The pattern given above works for WebLogic hosted service. In that case, you do not have to change anything.

If the service is hosted in Glassfish, the pattern would be http://<HTTP_ HOSTNAME>:<HTTP_PORT>/<SERVICE_NAME>Service/<SERVICE_ NAME>Bean.

<App>.app-service-end-point-url-pattern=http://<HTTP_HOSTNAME>:<HTTP_ PORT>/<SERVICE_NAME>Bean/<SERVICE_NAME>Service

This property holds the application specific URL pattern for the web services. This is an optional property and you need to specify only when the application service URLs do not match the global pattern. If application pattern is present, the global pattern is ignored for that application.

For example,

oms.app-service-end-point-url-pattern=https://<HTTP_HOSTNAME>:<HTTP_

PORT>/<SERVICE_NAME>Bean/<SERVICE_NAME>Service

<Decorator>.app-service-end-point-url=<Service URL>

This property holds the decorator level URL pattern. This is an optional property and need to be specified only if the service URL do not match the application pattern or global pattern. This is the lowest granular level of control for the URL pattern. This entry need not be a pattern; you can provide the actual URL instead.

If a decorator level property is present, the app level and global level properties are ignored for that decorator. You can give any number of decorator level properties.

The global, app and decorator level properties give the complete control to specify any type of web service URLs.

For example,

rms-Supplier-AppServiceDecorator.app-service-end-point-url=https://rsbhost.example .com:19721/SupplierBean/SupplierService

Note: Use service level pattern, if there are only few services with a different pattern. If most of the services in an application follow a pattern, use application level pattern and service level pattern for the exceptions.

Enabling and Disabling Instrumentation

There are a few properties in rsb-decorator-instrumentation.properties that determines the instrumentation. The services can be instrumented at the global level or service level. Two factors that affect this configuration are business requirements and performance. The tracing and audit are designed to persist the information asynchronously. It should not affect the main flow of execution other than just an asynchronous call to the data persistence code. However, if all the services are instrumented and there is very high transaction volume, performance of the server is affected. In those cases, the instrumentation is enabled based on service.

There are two levels of instrumentation: Trace and Audit. Tracing is the flag to enable instrumentation. Audit flag decides whether payload is also persisted along with other instrumentation data. Persisting the payload will have an impact on the size of the database since size of the payload bigger than the combined sizes of all other instrumented data. So the decision to audit should consider the overhead it has.

Tracing for all the service level is decided by the following property:

global.instrumentation.tracing.enabled

Audit for all the service level is decided by the following property:

global.instrumentation.auditing.enabled

Auditing and Tracing for a specific service is enabled by the properties <App>-<ServiceName>-AppServiceDecorator.instrumentation.auditing.enabled and <App>-<ServiceName>-AppServiceDecorator.instrumentation.tracing.enabled where <ServiceName> is the name of the service and <App> is the name of the edge app.

Examples:

rms-PayTerm-AppServiceDecorator.instrumentation.auditing.enabled=true rms-PayTerm-AppServiceDecorator.instrumentation.tracing.enabled=true Tracing and Auditing can be enabled while RSB is up. The server polls the property files at the specified interval and the new changes are in effect from that moment. The

default interval is 10 minutes. If this interval does not suit the requirement, it can be changed by specifying new interval (in minutes) for the property:

instrumentation.property.reload.interval
Following steps show how to change the trace and audit properties:

- Make changes to desired trace and audit properties in rsb-decorator-instrumentation.properties file.
- Compile RSB using rsb-compiler.sh.
- Deploy any decorator (just one decorator is enough). This will deploy the jar file containing the property to the server.
- The changes will take effect in utmost 10 minutes (The default interval for the background task that runs to pick up the changes).

Changing Passwords

RSB uses many passwords during the installation. These usernames and passwords are stored in an encrypted credential wallet file under predetermined aliases.

- Service Activity Schema (sidb-jdbc-user-alias)
- WebLogic Server Admin (admin-server-user-alias)

If you are using Policy B for securing the services, there are additional credentials captured at compile time. If any of the passwords need to be changed, run the script setup-message-protection-security-credentials.sh to update the password in the credential wallet file. After updating the wallet file, run the script configure-rsb-app-server-for-security-policy-b.sh to update WebLogic server with new password(s) for policy B.

If any of the passwords need to be changed for any reason, follow the steps listed below.

- Change the password of the target system (Database, WebLogic).
- Run the rsb-compiler with -setup-security-credential option and update with new password.
- Run rsb-deployer.sh with -prepare-wls option.
- Deploy decorators and service integration flows.

Trace and Audit Logs

The trace and audit information is maintained in the RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY table. The contents of the table can be viewed through RIC. The Trace and Audit Log page in RIC allows users to filter the content by server by app name, message family, service name, time and time interval.

Broadcasting Logs

In RSB, the decorators are deployed to OSB cluster. When a consumer invokes a service, the invocation can happen in any of the managed servers of the cluster, depending on the load balancing algorithm. Each of the managed servers has its own log file. So the log information for the service execution will go to the log file of the managed server where the service got executed. This poses a hurdle when troubleshooting. RSB solves this issue by having the managed servers broadcast the

log to the admin server. Thus the logs from all managed servers are made available in a single location.

Each of the managed server is enabled for log broadcasting. A global log filter (RSBLogFilter) is selected as the filter for selecting the log entries to be sent to the Admin Server. The default setting for this log filter is to send all the log entries. This is done using a log filter expression: "(SERVER LIKE '%')". The log filter expression may be modified, if only specific types of logs need to be broadcasted. For example, if the system requirement is to broadcast only message of certain log level, then the log filter expression needs to be modified to filter the entries accordingly.

The users can view the consolidated log on its location or via the RIC application.

Log File Archive and Purge

The default log file size or number of logs may not be adequate in a production environment. Every customer must choose the file size and number of files suitable for their environment. However, larger log file sizes may impact the performance of Retail Integration Console (RIC) pages that show log information.

To change the default size of the log file and the number of log files through WebLogic Admin console.

- 1. Click the domain name (rsb_domain).
- 2. Click the Logging tab to reach the screen.
- 3. Click Lock & Edit, if necessary.
- 4. Click **Save** and then **Release Configuration**, if needed.

	Administration Cons	sole						
Change Center	🕼 Home Log Out Preferences 🔤 Record Help							
View changes and restarts	Home >Summary of Log Files >rsb_domain							
No pending changes exist. Click the Release	Settings for rsb_domain							
Configuration button to allow others to edit the domain.	Configuration Monitoring Control Se		Control Security	ty Web Service Security		Notes		
Lock & Edit	General JTA	JPA EJBs	Web Applications	Logging	Log Filters			
Release Configuration	Save							
Domain Structure								
rsb_domain -Environment -Deployments -Services	Because each WebLogic Server domain can run concurrent, multiple instances of WebLogic Server, WebLogic logging services collect messages that are ge status of the domain. Use this page to configure the message log for this WebLogic Server domain.							
	近 Log file name:				logs/rsb_domain.log			
Diagnostic Modules	- Rotation							
Diagnostic Images Request Performance	授 Rotation type:			By	By Size 💌			
Context SNMP	Rotation file size:			409	4096			
How do I								
View the domain log Change domain log file name and location	Begin rotation time:			00:0	00:00			
 Forward messages to the domain log Rotate log files 	Rotation interval:			24	24			
System Status	☑ Limit number of retained files							
Health of Running Servers Falled (0)	Files to retain:				G			
Critical (0) Overloaded (0) Warning (0)	🖉 Log file rotation directory:							
OK (4)	🔲 🚜 Rotate loo	g file on sta	tup					

17 Security

Security in the integration layer is a big concern for every retail enterprise. The security system should be open enough to allow trusted remote applications to integrate easily and, at the same time, lock down unauthorized remote access. To address security concerns, RSB utilizes a standard policy based security model supported by WebLogic and OSB. The security policy and the implementation details are described in the RSB Security Guide.

Web Service Security Policies

The RSB decorator services, edge app Web services and consumers can be secured to in many ways. The preferred method of security is by using web service security policies. There are many security policies available in OSB and edge app servers. Additionally, you can write custom security policies using security policy authoring tools.

The choice of security policy for a layer depends on the security policies available in other layers. The policies have to be compatible in order for the system to work. RSB supports two sets of such compatible policies out of the box. These are called Policy A and Policy B. While there is no restriction on RSB side to use any other policy, there is no built-in support for any other policies other than the two sets mentioned before.

In both Policy A and Policy B, OWSM is the security provider in RSB/OSB layer and WebLogic is the security provider in the edge app layer. Policy A is basically SSL plus Username Token and Policy B is Message Protection plus Username Token.



Note: Review the *Oracle Retail Service Backbone Security Guide*.

Testing the Retail Service Backbone

The Oracle Retail Service Backbone is difficult to test as a stand-alone subsystem. It is part infrastructure and part application, and needs to have the integrating application end-points for even a simple installation.

RSB provides a testing framework to test and validate the RSB installation. This is called Service Interface Testing (SIT) tool.

SIT

There are two types of test framework tools: PSIT and JSIT. PSIT is for PLSQL applications and JSIT is for Java applications. This application can be used to represent any of the Oracle Retail applications. SIT Tools are able to provide response to web service consumers. The responses can be customized for the request to enable different testing scenarios.

SIT tools enable customers to conduct RSB testing without waiting for the participating Retail application implemented. When the Retail application is implemented, the change may be as simple as changing the URL for the application.

SIT tools are not tools for testing, but application that helps testing by providing the missing pieces of integration.

To test a decorator service there are different options like SB Console, third-party applications like SoapUI, RIC, standalone programs and so on.

SB Console

SB Console has a test option for proxy services. In order to test a decorator, select the proxy service of the decorator service. Click the **Test Launch Console** icon (play icon) Select the operation to test and provide the input. The results of the test are displayed as XML in the response window.

RACLE: Service Bus Consol	5120	100 -	wij - webloge -
			Look door it
9	Addatably har software a		8808
T - B - B H	Folder Defablion (Formal Interplane (\$3.00 an our forget)		# 3
De Romandon van Applematikasjonen De Romandon van De Romandon van De Romandon van De Romandon van Applematikasjonen van Applematikasj	intersperson ner - X II II 2010		
Administration	*	All Taples	
Art-IslakApple-roftser	here:	Type	Adex
1 🛄 V50.	4-	Patter	
C rendecentor matrumentation	1 Autoritation Autoritation	Postra	► 1 d
and a state of the second second	the base of the ba	Manufacture .	
1 San Pulliner (Driver) and a logic road		and the second sec	
1 annual and a second s	Achitected Applementations	Ppers	1 1 4A
1 San FulfmentDrickferwichts Aprile	Sa Activitation Applian construct	Prosp Service	A Lounds Test Car
Compared and the second s			
an Landbarentinden Apple och an tantbarentinden Apple och an tantbarentinden Apple och an tantbarentinden Apple och an texterlaten Apple och	ig teelen ginner Mitteens Qinerrent Brazersanteen		

SB Console can test unsecured services and services using Policy B. It cannot test https based service (thus eliminating Policy A services).

Policy B Testing

Click the proxy service and then **Test Launch Console** icon to test the service. You can invoke any method. Ping method is the easiest to test. If the invocation is successful, it shows both encrypted and decrypted versions of request and response messages.

In order to test proxy service from test page, you need to provide values for following fields which are at the bottom of the test page:

- keystore.recipient.alias
- keystore.enc.csf.key
- csf-key

You can find the values for these fields from the Business Services > [Business Service] > Security tab of the same decorator project. You will see these values pre-populated in that page. Copy these values and enter on the proxy service test page for successful invocation of a service.

Direct Call nclude Tracing	•							
Request Do	cument							
J Request Do		244						
FUI	m XML							
0AP Header:	<soap:header xn<br=""></soap:header>	ilns:soap="http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/soap/envelope/">						
* Payload:	Choose File N	Zhoose File) No file chosen						
	<v1:ping xmins:v<br=""><ioptional:- <arg0>string< </arg0></ioptional:- </v1:ping>	1="http://www.orack > 	e.com/retail/igs/integrati	on/services/ASNInPublishin	gService/v1">			
Security								
Security								
Security Override Values		Policy Name		Property	Default Value	Override Value	Actions	
Security Override Values		Policy Name oracle/vst11_username	_token_with_message	Property keystors-recipient-alias	Default Value orakey	Override Value	Actions	
Security Override Values		Policy Name oracle/visi1_username	token with message	Property keystore.necpient.alias reference.priority	Default Value orakey [No Policy Default]	Override Value igs-msp52215-remote-h	Actions	
Security Override Values		Policy Name oracle/vss11_username	_token_with_message	Property keystore-necipient-alias reference-priority keystore-enc.cof.key	Default Value orakey [No Policy Default] [No Policy Default]	Override Value gs-msp52215-remote-h msp52215-public-privat	Actions Actions	
Security Override Values		Policy Name oracle/vss11_username	_token_with_message	Property keystore.recipient.alias reference.epionty keystore.enc.csf.key csf-key	Default Value orakey [No Policy Default] [No Policy Default] basic-credentials	Override Value gs-msp52215-remote-f msp52215-public-privat gs-ASNIDP-ublishing-use	Actions rd e er	
Security Override Values		Policy Name oracle/wss11_username Add	token_with_message	Property keystore-necipientalias reference.priority keystore.anc.cdf.key cdf-key	Default Value orakey [No Policy Default] [No Policy Default] [No Policy Default] basic.credentials [No Policy Default]	Override Value Igs-msp52215-remote-f msp52215-public-privat gs-ASNInPublishing-use	Actions rd er	
Security Override Values		Policy Name oracle/vrs11_username Add	_token_with_message	Property keystore.recipientalias reference.priority keystore.enc.cst.key csf-key	Default Value orakey (No Policy Default) [No Policy Default] basic.credentials	Override Value Igs msp52215-remote - I msp52215-public-privat Igs-ASNIInPublishing-uss	Actions ad er er	
Security Diverride Values Transport Attachmeni	t	Policy Name oracle/vrs11_username Add	_token_with_message	Property keystore.recipientalias reference.priority keystore.enc.coli.key csf-key	Default Value orakey (No Policy Default) (No Policy Default) basic.oredentials	Override Value Igs-msp52215-remote-I I msp52215-public-privat Igs-ASNIInPublishing-us	Actions Re Be Be C C C C C C C C C C C C C	
Security Dverride Values Transport Attachment Execute	t Execute-52	Policy Name oracle/ws11_username Add	_token_with_message	Property keystore.recipient.alias reference.priority keystore.enc.csfi.key csfi.key	Default Value crakey [No Policy Default] [No Policy Default] basic.credentials	Override Value Igs-msp52215-remote-i Imsp52215-public-privat Igs-ASNInPublishing-use	Actions No en en	

Third-party tools (SoapUI)

SoapUI is an Open Source Functional Testing tool for Web Services.

See http://www.soapui.org for more details.

SoapUI can be used to test decorator services. Unsecured services and services secured with Policy A can be tested using SoapUI. Currently there is no easy way to test services secured with Policy B.





RIC

RIC is another application that can validate the Retail services. In the Health Check tab under Performance And Diagnostics tab the services are listed and the ping operation can be invoked. RIC can test ping operation of unsecured services and services that are secured with Policy A and Policy B. RIC cannot test any other operations other than ping. RIC is an easy way to validate the service connectivity between the Retail applications. However, even if the ping operation is successful there are still scenarios like the ones listed below that can prevent a successful service invocation.

- The payload mismatch between service consumer and service provider (because of different versions of artifacts)
- Incorrect certificate (for secured services) in service consumer side
- Network connectivity between service consumer and service provider machines
- Un-synchronized machine time between service consumer and service provider
- Invalid credentials passed from the service consumer.

19

Performance

This chapter discusses the performance characteristics of RSB, the factors that affect it, and a process to test it.

Performance of RSB within a customer site is critical to the performance of the business, and is determined by factors specific to a given deployment. Because of this is, a Performance Test is recommended as part of every deployment plan. Even if formal testing is not planned, the use of the tools and processes discussed can measure the relative performance of the RSB sub-system and can be used to diagnose bottlenecks.

It is beyond the scope of this document to discuss all of the tools and techniques available at the host, network, database, and application server level.

Performance Factors

The performance of each of these components is influential in the overall performance of the system:

- The application server(s) topology and configuration.
- The RSB deployment approach.
- The hardware sizing and configuration of the RSB hosts.
- The hardware sizing and configuration of the applications that are connected to the RSB.

There are other factors that determine the performance of the overall system. Some of these factors in a RSB environment are:

- Number of managed servers in the cluster
- Number of service calls
- Size of the payload
- Database clustering

Cluster Deployment

RSB needs to be installed in a cluster. A cluster configuration allows for horizontal scaling. Managed servers can be added or removed depending on the volume of transactions and performance requirement. Also, customers can configure different load balancing algorithm to suit their needs.

Enabling/Disabling Instrumentation

If the performance drop is due to heavy instrumentation, the instrumentation can be turned off or set selectively to a minimum level. Also, unnecessary auditing can be turned off for services to improve performance.

Purging

Some of the data gets accumulated over time. Purging or archiving unnecessary data helps system performance.

RSB Service Activity Table

Service Activity table adds a row for each invocation of the service for which trace is enabled. If audit is enabled, the payload is also persisted into the database. Depending on the business need, unnecessary growth of this table should be controlled by regular purging.

RSB Service Activity is a high volume, denormalized table and is expected to grow into a significant size, measures should be taken to manage and monitor the table on frequent basis depending on the consumer's Data lifecycle management policies. Un-monitored, undamaged RSB Service activity table overtime can lead to significant issues not limited to slow system response, database instance issue, database crash and others.

Some of the recommendations are:

- Partitioning strategy: Date Partitioning on the table (one of the partition schemes).
- Data Purging. Purging of RSB SERVICE ACTIVITY should be done at the partition level. Dropping or truncating a partition would perform far better than a delete statement. Global indexes will have to be maintained/updated as well;
- Collection of statistics on a frequent basis.
- Data Archiving.
- Parallelization of queries.

How to Calculate Schema Size?

The service activity table can grow fast depending on the number of transaction and trace and audit configuration. The growth rate and size requirement varies by the type of retail business. It is recommended to estimate the size requirement for your enterprise in the beginning.

Size required (MB) = number of days of data retention * average number of transactions per day * average record size (MB)

You may use the following SQL to calculate the average size of a row, if you have sufficient data in the service activity table.

```
select
avg(nvl(vsize(activity_num),0) +
    nvl(vsize(activity_state),0) +
    nvl(vsize(application_name),0) +
    nvl(vsize(business_operation_name),0) +
    nvl(vsize(BUSINESS_SERVICE_NAME),0) +
    nvl(vsize(BUSINESS_SERVICE_URI),0) +
    nvl(vsize(ERROR_CODE),0) +
    nvl(vsize(ERROR_DETAIL),0) +
```

```
nvl(vsize(ERROR_REASON),0) +
nvl(vsize(MESSAGE_ECID),0) +
nvl(vsize(MESSAGE_FAMILY),0) +
nvl(vsize(PROXY_OPERATION_NAME),0) +
nvl(vsize(PROXY_SERVICE_NAME),0) +
nvl(vsize(PROXY_SERVICE_URI),0) +
nvl(vsize(REQUEST_TIMESTAMP),0) +
nvl(dbms_lob.getlength(REQUEST_XML),0) +
nvl(dbms_lob.getlength(RESPONSE_XML),0) +
nvl(dbms_lob.getlength(RESPONSE_XML),0)
) "Average Size(Bytes)"
from
rsb_soainfra.rsb_service_activity
```

WebLogic Data Retirement Policy

WebLogic data retirement policy may have impact on the performance of server. If the RSB system has a lot of alerts and statistical information accumulated over time, the old data needs to be retired to keep the performance optimal. RSB ships with a default data retirement policy. This is disabled by default.

The default data retirement policy is set with a Retirement Age of 72, Retirement Time of 1 and Retirement Period 12. This means retire data 72 hours or older. Start the first run from 1:00 am and repeat the process every 12 hours after that.

If the customer wants to use this policy, they can enable the policy through WebLogic Admin Console. Following steps show how to enable the data retirement policy.

- 1. Click Diagnostics.
- 2. Click Archives.
- **3.** Click **AdminServer**.
- 4. Click Lock & Edit, if needed.
- Select the policies BusinessAlertDataRetirePolicy and SLAAlertDataRetirePolicy.
- **6.** Click b.

0

7. Click **Release Configuration**, if needed.

ok the Look & Edit button to modify, add or	Settings for Adminiserver								
Lock & Edt	Configuration Diagnostics Store Monitoring								
Release Configuration	Click the Lock & Editbutton in the Change Cen	ter to modify the settings on this page.							
main Structure	Save								
_domain Environment	Use this page to configure how and where the o	Use this page to configure how and where the current server archives its monitoring and diagnostics data.							
Services "Security Realms	Server:	AdminGerver	AdninGerver						
Disroperability Outprovide Tup Pile Outprovide Outprovide Notubes Outprovide Request Performance	Type:	File Store v	File Store -						
	Directory:	data/store/diagnostics	data/store/diagnostics						
	Diagnostics Store File Locking Enabled			Determines v	whether OS file locking is				
SWP	Data Source:	(Required, Not Currently S	pecified) -	The JDBC da	ta source that the server				
Configure diagnostic archives	Preferred Store Size:	10		Return the p	preferred limit on the size				
stem Status	Store Size Check Period:	1		Return the p	period in hours at which d				
alth of Running Servers	🖉 Data Retirement Enabled			This attribute	e controls if configuration				
Critical (0) Critical (0) Overloaded (0) Warning (0) CK (4)	D Advanced	d for this archive. Starting a data retirement task v	If result in records being permanently removed from the archiv	re.					
	Data Retirement Policies								
	New Delete Enable / Daale v Start Data Retrement								
	🔳 Name 🌣	Туре	Archive Name	Enabled	Retirement Age				
	AdminServerDataRetirementPolicy	WLDFDataRetirementByAge	CUSTOM/com.bea.wil.monitoring.sla.alert	true	24				
	DataRetirementPolicy-0	WLDFDataRetirementByAge	HarvestedDataArchive	true	24				
	DataRetirementPolicy-1	WLDFDataRetirementByAge	EventsDataArchive	true	24				
	New Delete Enable / Disable ~ Start D	New Delete Enable / Disable V Start Data Retirement							

Troubleshooting

RIC can be used to assist both technical and business troubleshooting. Here are some of the features that can help in analysis of issues.

- Health check (WSDL accessibility). The ping operation can be used to check if there are any connectivity issues in calling services. This page allows testing database connectivity too.
- Log files. RIC shows a consolidated log from all the managed servers. You can filter the log based on severity, timestamp and server to analyze the log.
- Historical trend. Historical trend graphs show the trend of service invocation in the system. These graphs can be used to identify spikes and dips in service invocation counts to see any pattern that can indicate potential issues or risks. There are various levels of aggregation by app, message family, service and so on.
- Recent Activity in RSB Integration Summary shows the recent transactions. This can be used to check if an invocation went through the system.
- Top Problematic Interface in RSB Integration Summary page shows the interfaces that generate most faults.
- Trace logs show the log of transactions for services enabled for trace.

External Systems Integration

Enterprise Manager

Enterprise Manager for Fusion Middleware Control (EM) is useful in managing web service security policies, keystores and credential wallets, in addition to domain and server management features it provides.

EM is an optional component for RSB. It is installed during the domain creation. If installed, it allows for managing keystore and wallet files (especially for Policy B), managing OWSM policies and authoring web service policies.

RSB Architecture

The following diagram shows a deployment architecture diagram of a typical RSB implementation.



<u>A</u>

List of RSB Decorator Paks

- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForRm16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForCm16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForRms16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForFin16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForRpm16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForIgs16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForRwms16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForOms16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForSim16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForCo16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForCtr16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForRce16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForRob16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForOoc16.0.030_eng_ga.zip
- RsbAppServiceDecoratorPak16.0.030ForMms16.0.030_eng_ga.zip

Service Integration Flows

 $RsbServiceIntegrationFlowPak16.0.030ForRibOmsToRsbOmsRouting_eng_ga.zip$

RSB Security Configuration Sample Script

 $RsbAppServiceSecuritySetupSamplesPak 16.0.030 For All 16.0.030 Apps_eng_ga.zip$

D

RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY Table

Create Table

The recommended partitioning strategy is interval partitioning based on the request_timestamp column, with a single partition per day.

CREATE TABLE RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY

```
(
 ACTIVITY_NUM NUMBER(19)
ACTIVITY_STATE VARCHAR2(8),
                                              NOT NULL,
      APPLICATION_NAME VARCHAR2(8),
 BUSINESS_OPERATION_NAME VARCHAR2(256),
 BUSINESS_SERVICE_NAMEVARCHAR2(256),
 BUSINESS_SERVICE_URI VARCHAR2(256),
 ERROR_CODE VARCHAR2(64),
ERROR_DETAILVARCHAR2(2048),ERROR_REASONVARCHAR2(1024),MESSAGE_ECIDVARCHAR2(64)NOTMESSAGE_FAMILYVARCHAR2(25),
                      VARCHAR2(64)NOT NULL,
PROXY_OPERATION_NAME VARCHAR2(64),
PROXY_SERVICE_NAME VARCHAR2(256),
PROXY_SERVICE_URI VARCHAR2(256),
REQUEST_TIMESTAMP TIMESTAMP(6),
REQUEST_XML CLOB,
RESPONSE_TIMESTAMP TIMESTAMP(6),
RESPONSE XML
                       CLOB
)
```

Indexes

Indexes were added to assist in obtaining optimal performance of the active, real-time console. Six indexes were added, naming of indexes should be updated from what is listed below. Recommended indexes are as follows. All indexes are LOCAL partitioned indexes.

```
CREATE INDEX RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY _I1 ON RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY
(REQUEST_TIMESTAMP, APPLICATION_NAME, MESSAGE_FAMILY, PROXY_SERVICE_NAME)
LOGGING
TABLESPACE RETAIL_INDEX
LOCAL
INITRANS 12;
```

CREATE INDEX RSB_SERVICE_ACT_TEST_I3 ON RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY (REQUEST_TIMESTAMP, APPLICATION_NAME, ACTIVITY_STATE)

```
TABLESPACE RETAIL INDEX
INITRANS 12
LOGGING
LOCAL;
CREATE INDEX RSB SERVICE ACTIVITY 14 ON RSB SERVICE ACTIVITY
(REQUEST_TIMESTAMP, PROXY_SERVICE NAME, ACTIVITY_STATE)
 TABLESPACE RETAIL INDEX
 INITRANS 12
LOGGING
LOCAL;
CREATE INDEX RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY_I5 ON RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY
(REQUEST_TIMESTAMP, ACTIVITY_STATE)
 TABLESPACE RETAIL_INDEX
 INITRANS 12
LOGGING
LOCAL;
CREATE INDEX RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY_17 ON RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY
(RESPONSE_TIMESTAMP, PROXY_SERVICE_NAME)
 TABLESPACE RETAIL_INDEX
 INITRANS 12
LOCAL
LOGGING;
CREATE INDEX RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY_I8 ON RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY
(REQUEST_TIMESTAMP, RESPONSE_TIMESTAMP, APPLICATION_NAME)
 TABLESPACE RETAIL_INDEX
 INITRANS 12
 LOCAL
LOGGING;
```

Constraints

ALTER TABLE RSB_SERVICE_ACTIVITY ADD CONSTRAINT PK_RSB_SERVICE_ACT_TEST PRIMARY KEY (ACTIVITY_NUM) USING INDEX TABLESPACE RETAIL_INDEX INITRANS 12;

Purging / Maintenance

Purging of this table should be done at the partition level. Dropping or truncating a partition would perform far better than a delete statement. Global indexes must be maintained/updated as well; there is only 1 global index at this time and that is on the primary key of the table. Updating of global indexes could be expensive with the potential size of this table. It will be a good idea to limit the number of global indexes used on this table.

References

OSB

- Oracle® Fusion Middleware Concepts and Architecture for Oracle Service Bus 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0) https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/12213/osb/develop/
- Oracle® Fusion Middleware Administrator's Guide for Oracle Service Bus 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)

https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/12213/osb/administer/

WebLogic

 Oracle® Fusion Middleware Using Clusters for Oracle WebLogic Server 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)

https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/12213/wls/index.html

- Oracle® Fusion Middleware Introducing Web Services 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0) https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/12213/owsm/
- Oracle® Fusion Middleware Performance and Tuning for Oracle WebLogic Server 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)

https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/12213/wls/WLCAG/weblogic_ca_intro.htm#WLCAG107

OWSM

 Oracle® Fusion Middleware Security and Administrator's Guide for Web Services 12c Release 2 (12.2.1.3.0)

https://docs.oracle.com/middleware/12213/owsm/